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KRISHNAPATNAM RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED
Registered Office: Amsri Faust Complex, Door No 9-1-164 /A to 166,
S%Floor, Sarojini Devi Road, Secunderabad- 500003, Telangana

Ph. No. 011-26738406, Fax. No. 011-26182957
CIN:U45200TG2006PLC051378

NOTICE
Of the 12™"Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the 12t Annual General Meeting of members of
Krishnapatnam Railway Company Limited will be held on Friday, 10t
August, 2018 at 12:30 hrs at Amsri Faust Complex, Sarojini Devi Road,
Secunderabad- 500003, Telangana to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

‘;1_._ Adoption of Financial Statements

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the
Company for the Financial year ended March 31, 2018 together with the
Report of the Board of Directors, the Statutory Auditors and Secretarial

Auditors thereon.

2. Appointment of Director
To appoint a Director in place of Dr. Koya Praveen, (DIN No. 07858949), who

retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

3. Appointment of Director
To appoint a Director in place of Dr. T.R.K. Rao, (DIN No. 01312449), who

retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

4. Appointment of Director
To appoint a Director in place of Mr. S. Subba Rao, (DIN No. 07124119), who

retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

S. Remuneration of Statutory Auditors for the year 2018-19

As per the provisions of section 139(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
appointment of Statutory Auditors of the Company is made by the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India (C&AG). Section 142 of the
Companies Act, 2013 provides that, the remuneration of the auditor of the
Company shall be fixed by the Company in General Meeting or, in such
manner as the Company may determine in the General Meeting. Therefore

the following resolution is proposed before the General Meeting:
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To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the

following resolution as Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to fix the remuneration of Statutory Auditors of the Company
appointed by the office of Comptroller & Auditor General of India for audit of
Accounts of the Company for financial year 2018-19.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the

i’dllowing resolution as Ordinary Resolution:

Item No. 06 Appointment of Mrs. Shilpi Agarwal (Din: 08004390) as a
Director
"RESOLVED THAT Mrs. Shilpi Agarwal, GM(F)/RVNL (Holding DIN No.
08004390), who was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company by
the Board of Directors with effect from November 28, 2017, pursuant to
Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, to hold office till the ensuing
Annual General Meeting and in respect of whom the Company has received
a notice in writing from a member proposing her candidature for the office of
Director, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company whose

period of office shall be liable to retire by rotation.”

Item No. 07 Appointment of Mr. M. P. Singh (Din: 08165734) as a
Director
"RESOLVED THAT Mr. M. P. Singh, ED(W)/RVNL, nominee of the RVNL
(Holding DIN No. 08165734), who was appointed as Additional Director of
the Company by the Board of Directors with effect from June 25, 2018,
pursuant to Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013,to hold office till the
ensuing Annual General Meeting and in respect of whom the Company has
received a notice in writing from a member proposing his candidature for the
office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company

whose period of office shall be liable to retire by rotation.” \
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To consider and, if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s), the

following resolutions as a Special Resolution:

8. Increase in Authorize share capital of the Company from Rs. 270
Crore to Rs. 650 Crore

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 61 (1) (a) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions of the Act, if any,
Article 5 of Articles of Association of the Company, the Authorized Share
Capital of the Company be and is hereby increased from
Rs. 270,00,00,000/- ( Rupees Two Hundred Seventy Crore) divided into
27,00,00,000 (Twenty Seven Crore) equity shares of Rs.10/- each to
Rs. 6,50,00,00,000/- (Rupees Six Hundred Fifty Crore) divided into
65,00,00,000/- (Sixty Five Crore) equity shares of Rs.10/- each ranking
pari-passu with the existing shares in the Company and that Clause — V of
the Memorandum of Association of the Company, for the words and figures
“The Authorized Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 2,70,00,00,000/- (
Rupees Two Hundred Seventy Crore only) divided into 27,00,00,000 (Twenty
Seven Crore) equity shares of Rs.10/- each, the following shall be
substituted:

“The Authorized Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 6,50,00,00,000/-
(Rupees Six Hundred Fifty Crore) divided into 65,00,00,000/- (Sixty

Five Crore) equity shares of Rs.10/- each.”

9. Change in Article 4 of the Articles of Association of the Company
“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of section 14 (1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions of Companies Act, if
any, in Article 4 of the Articles of Association of the Company, for the words
and figures  “The  Authorized Share Capital of the Company is
Rs. 270,00,00,000/- (Rupees Two Hundred Seventy Crore only) divided into
27,00,00,000 (Twenty Seven Crore) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each, the
following shall be substituted:
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“The Authorized Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 6,50,00,00,000/-
(Rupees Six Hundred Fifty Crore only ) divided into 65,00,00,000/-
(Sixty Five Crore) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each.”

By Order of Board of Directors
For Krishnapatnam Railway Company Limited

Gey-

Date: 20tk July, 2018 Trilok Garg
Place: New Delhi Company Secretary
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NOTES:

1. THE RELATED STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 IN RESPECT OF ITEM NOS. 6 to 9 SET OUT IN
THE NOTICE IS ANNEXED HERETO.

2. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT
A PROXY TO ATTEND, AND ON A POLL, TO VOTE INSTEAD OF
HIM/HERSELF. SUCH A PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE
COMPANY. PROXIES IN ORDER TO BE VALID AND EFFECTIVE MUST BE

* DELIVERED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT

'LATER THAN FORTY-EIGHT HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF
THE MEETING.

TO:

1. ALL THE SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY.
ii. STATUTORY AUDITORS OF THE COMPANY.
iii. SECRETARIAL AUDITOR OF THE COMPANY

iv. ALL DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY.
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Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act") to the accompanying Notice

The following Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013
(“Act”) sets out all material facts relating to the Special Businesses mentioned

in the accompanying Notice should be taken as forming part of the Notice.

Item No. 06

The Board of Directors appointed Mrs. Shilpi Agarwal (Din: 08004390), as
Additional Director w.e.f. November 28, 2017 pursuant to Section 161 of the
Companies Act, 2013 till the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The Board of
Directors of your Company recommends passing of the Ordinary Resolution
as set out in the Item no. 6 of the Notice.

Except Mrs. Shilpi Agarwal, being the appointee, none of the other Directors
and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives is

concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution.

Item No. 07

The Board of Directors appointed Mr. M. P. Singh (Din: 08165734), as
Additional Director, w.e.f. June 25, 2018 pursuant to Section 161 of the
Companies Act, 2013 till the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The Board of
Directors of your Company recommends passing of the Ordinary Resolution
as set out in the Item no. 7 of the Notice.

Except Mr. M. P. Singh, being the appointee, none of the other Directors and
Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives is concerned

or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution.

Item No. 08 &9

The estimated cost of construction of the project, has increased to
Rs. 1850 Crore from the previous estimated cost of Rs. 1203 Crore, when
the financial closure was achieved. The resultant funding gap of Rs. 647
Crore plus IDC will be financed partly through equity and partly, through
debt. At present the equity share capital of the Company is Rs. 270 Crore

Q’z?gg 6 ——
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and the additional equity share capital can be raised by the Company only if

it has sufficient Authorized Share Capital to cover the additional equity.
Therefore it becomes necessary to increase the Authorized Share Capital.
The issue was discussed by the Board of Directors at the 49th Board meeting
held on 26% June, 2018 and the Board decided to increase the authorized
share capital of the Company from existing authorized share capital Rs. 270
crore to Rs. 650 Crore.

The change in authorized share capital of the Company would also require
alteration in respective clauses of Memorandum and Articles of Association
of the Company.

Section 61 (1) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013 provides that a Company
niay, if authorized by the Memorandum of Association, increase its
authorized share capital with the consent of the Shareholders at a General
Meeting.

Section 14 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 also requires the Shareholders
consent for altering Articles of Association of the Company by passing a
Special Resolution in the meeting.

Further, as per the provisions of the Shareholders and Share Subscription
Agreement of the Company, any amendment in Memorandum of
Association and Article of Association of the Company requires the
Shareholders’ consent by passing s Super Majority Resolution (3/4th
Majority) along with affirmative vote of RVNL.

None of the Directors/KMPs of the Company or their relatives is interested
or concerned, financially or otherwise in the proposed resolutions except to

the extent of the shares held by them.

The Board of Directors recommends passing the above resolutions at item

No. 8 & 9 as Super Majority (Special) Resolution.

By Order of Board of Directors

For Krishnapatnam Railway Company Limited

Date: 20ttt July, 2018 Trilok Garg
Place: New Delhi 0o Company Secretary
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BOARD’S REPORT

RISHNAPATNAM FRAILWAY

To
The Members,

OMPANY LLIMITED

Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the 12t Annual Report on the
working of your Company along with Audited Annual Accounts, for the
Financial Year ended March 31, 2018.

1. Financial Performance: Summary of Financial Results

(Amount in Rs. Cr.)

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Total Revenue 671.99 527.95
Total Expenditure 640.49 527.42
Net profit/loss 31.50 0.53
before tax

Provision for tax 5.70 0.45
Net Profit/Loss after 25.80 .08
tax

Earnings Per Share (.96) (.00)
- Basic (.96) (.00)
- Diluted (.96) (.00)

*Figures of revenue and expenditures given above are according to assumptions taken
while preparation of Financial Statements by the Company as per IND-AS. Actual figures
of revenue from operations and O&M expenses are given at para 2 below.

2. Operations and Performance of the Company and status of Project
During the FY 2017-18, 12.93 MT traffic was carried on the operational line
of 21 KM, whereas, during FY 2016-17, 10.69 MT traffic moved through the
line. There was an increase of about 21% in the movement of traffic volume
on the Line during the period under report compared to FY 2016-17. This
was primarily happened due to considerable surge in industrial production
and power generation witnessed in the last fiscal of the Country. Net
earnings of the Company from operations after defraying of O&M charges
but before depreciation also increased by 175% (i.e. Rs. 50.15 Cr for FY
2017-18 as against Rs. 18.26 Cr for FY 2016-17) after receipt of Terminal
Cost from Ministry of Railways w.e.f. 11th August, 2017.

The traffic during FY 2018-19 'is expected to grow by about 5%, due to
increase in import of coal traffic for powerhouses, steel plants, etc., and
export of Dolomite, Stone, Gypsum, etc.
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3. Construction of Phase-Il Single Line from Obulavaripalle to
Venkatachalam (95km):

Rail line section from Venkatachalam to Krishnapatnam (21KM) is already
operational. Construction of Rail Line (balance work) under Ph-II is
progressing in full swing, which is expected to be completed by November,
2018. However, the section under reference has since been declared fit for
running Goods Trains. Brief status of construction of the project is below:

ACTIVITY TOTAL QTY COMPLETED TARGET
QUANTITY
Land Acquisition 1900 Acres 1900 Acres Completed
Forest Clearance 325 Acres 325 Acres Completed
Earthwork 108 Lac Cum 108 Lac Cum Completed
Tunnel-I 962 m 962 m Completed
Excavation/Boring
Tunnel-II 6700 m 6700 m Completed
Excavation /Boring
Tunnel-I Lining 962 m 962m Completed.
And Ballast less
Track
Tunnel-II Lining 6700 m Balance work is
progressing at
slow pace
Formation Work 87 Km 87 Km Completed.
Track Linking, 94 Km 94 Km Completed.
Signaling Completed
OHE 94 Km Foundation
Completed. OHE
wiring completed
for 80KM and
balance work is
in progress.

Key focus:

Key focus of the Company is to complete the construction of balance work of
Phase -II (94KM) of the project line as early as practical in a cost effective
manner as soon as funds are made available.

4. Reserves

During the year the Company has transferred an amount Rs. 25.80 Cr. to
General reserve which sets off the existing accumulated loss of Rs. 21.28
Cr., and surplus available in the General reserve stands at about Rs. 4.52
Cr., as on 31st March, 2018.

5. Share Capital

During the year under review, there was no change in the Capital Structure
of the Company. The issued, subscribed and paid-up Equity Share capital of
the Company on 31st March, 2018 was Rs. 270 Crore.

011 :

IMITED




L SRISHNAPATNAM PR AILWAY " OMPANY LIMITED

However, the Company plans to increase its capital base to meet the fund
requirements for completion of the project as the hard cost of the project has
since been increased from Rs. 1203 Cr. (in 2012) to Rs. 1850 Cr., (in 2017)
as well as to pay off the dues of RVNL. The Board has proposed in its 49th
meeting dt. 26t June, 2018 to increase the Authorised Share Capital of the
Company to Rs. 650 Crore. The proposal will be put up for shareholders
approval at the 12 Annual General meeting of the Company.

6. Dividend

During the year the Company recorded a profit Rs. 25.80 Cr. (approx.) after
tax in its accounts. However, the Company is facing critical funds
availability position, even to pay the dues of RVNL on account of project
construction expenditures and to service the monthly interest on Banks
Loan. Hence the Directors do not recommend any dividend for the Financial
Year ended on 31stMarch, 2018.

7. Changes in the nature of the Business
During the year under review, there were no changes in nature of business
of the Company.

8. Material changes and Commitments affecting the Financial Position
of the Company

There are no material changes and commitments, from the date of the

Balance Sheet till the date of this Report, affecting the financial position of

the Company.

9. Details of Board of Directors

9.1 Board’s composition, Category of Directors and their Meetings

The Board is collectively responsible for the sustainable success of the
Company under the leadership of Chairman. The Company’s Board has an
optimum combination of Non-Executive Nominee Directors and reflects
diversity in terms of disciplines, professions, social groups, and gender and
stakeholder interest.

The strength of the Board as on March 31, 2018 was Seven (7) directors.
They are as follows:

SL Name DIN Number Designation

No.

1. Mr. Vinod Kumar Aggarwal 07764956 Chairperson
(IRSEE)

2. Dr. Koya Praveen (IPS) 07858949 Nominee director

3. Dr. T R K Rao (Ex-IRTS) 01312449 Nominee Director

4 Mr. Pradeep Gaur (IRSE) 07243986 Nominee Director

012 ;
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5. Mr. Anil Kumar Yendluri (Ex- 02898938
IPS)

6. Mrs. Shilpi Agarwal (IRAS) 08004390

i Mr. S Subba Rao (Ex-IRTS) 07124119

P ARISHNAPATNAM |
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Nominee Director

Nominee Director
Nominee Director

During the financial year ended March 31, 2018, the Board of Directors met
Five (5) times on 23t June, 2017, 09th August, 2017, 28t November, 2017,
O1st February, 2018 and 09t March, 2018.

9.2 Details of attendance of each Director in the Board meetings held
during the period April 01, 2017 to March 31, 2018

Sl. | Name of the Director | Designation

Chairperson

1 Independent

| Director

Independent

' Director

No
i I aMr.Vinod ' Kﬁmax_'_‘
‘ | Aggarwal
2 Mr. A Venkateswar
3 | Mr N V Trivedi Babu
'4 | Mr. Rahul Pandey
5 |Dr.TRK Rao
6 Mr. Pradeep Gaur
7 ! Mr. Anil Kumar |
' Yendluri .
' Dr. Monica Agnihotri

'Mr. S Subba Rao
10 | Dr. Koya Praveen
11 | Mrs. Shilpi Agarwal

Director

Director

' Director

Director

Director
Director
Director

' Director

g g

O R O]

[3

Meetings
Held during

| the tenure

-5

1

Meetings
Attended

t.3..
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*Cessation/ Appointment/ Re;appointment of Directors during April 01,
2017 to March 31, 2018. Details are given under section 9.3 below.

9.3 Changes in the Board during the period April 01, 2017 to March 31,

2018

During the year under review, following changes took place in the
composition of the Board of Directors of the Company:

S. Name of the 'Designation

No | Director

T ——

Venkateswar | Independent
Director

Appointment Resignation/

Re-appointment and Change

013
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2. [Mr. N V Trivedi|Independent | Cessation on July 05, 2017 | !
'Babu  Director - l
|

e —— = B e —

=

/3. | Mr. Rahul Pandey Nominee Cessation on September 08,
Lo | Director | 2017 il |
4. [ Dr. Koya Praveen | Nominee Appointment on September Il
_ | = _ _ | Director | 08, 2017 | N
'5. | Dr. Monica | Nominee ' Cessation on November 28, I
_L Agmhotr; P ‘ | Director 12017 _ | i
6. ' Appointment on November 28, | I
| Director 2017 |

|
10. Extract of Annual Return !l
The Extract of Annual Return in Form MGT-9 pursuant to Section 92(3) of '
the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014 is attached as ANNEXURE- I to this Report. |

11. Details of Appointment and cessation of Key Managerial Personnel
(KMP) |
During the year under review all the personnel appointed/designated as '

KMP under provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 remained the same., !’
Presently following persons are the designated KMPs of the Company: (f

l

1. Sh. S N Banerjea, Chief Executive Officer }f
2. Sh. T Muni Prasad, Chief Financial Officer |

3. Sh. Trilok Garg, Company Secretary ”
12. Particulars of Employees and related Disclosures
In terms of the provisions of section 197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 |
read with Rule 5(2) and Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of ‘
Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014. During the year under Report, no ‘,
employee of the Company was drawing remuneration in excess of I
Rs. 6,00,000 per month.

13. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments

During the year under review, the Company has not advanced any loans/ i
given guarantees/made investments under section 186 of the Companies ..i
Act; 2013, '

14. Particulars or Contracts with Related Party Transactions .
No Related Party Transactions was entered into by the Company during the ’
year as per the provisions of section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. |7
Accordingly, the disclosure of Related Party Transactions as requ1red under |
Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOC- 2 is not ‘
applicable. {l

014 5 |
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15. Internal Financial Control ﬁ
The Company has in place adequate internal control system which is

commensurate with its size, scale and complexities of its operations. The
Audit Committee of the Board of Directors actively reviews the adequacy and
effectiveness of the internal control systems and no reportable material
weakness in the design or operation were observed.

16. Statutory Auditors Report

M/s Satyendra Jain & Associates, Chartered Accountants was appointed as
Statutory Auditors of the Company for FY 2017-18 by the office of the CAG.
The report of the Statutory Auditors of the Company has been received and
circulated to the shareholders along with notice of Annual General Meeting.

17. Secretarial Audit Report

The Company appointed Mr. Anil Anand (Company Secretary in Practice), as
Secretarial Auditor of the Company for FY 2017-18 pursuant to provisions of
Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Report of Secretarial Auditor for the Financial Year 2017-18 was '
received and is annexed to this report as Annexure-II.

18. Explanations or comments by the Board on qualifications, |
reservations, adverse remarks or disclaimer in the Auditor’s Report and )
Secretarial Auditor’s report ’
Explanations or replies of the Board on qualifications/reservations/adverse

remarks, disclaimers in the Audit Report issued by the Statutory Auditor of ‘
the Company are enclosed as Annexure-III, to Directors report. There is no '
adverse remark/comment in the Secretarial Audit Report. ‘

19. Risk management policy

The Company got a mandate to execute the Obulavaripalle- Krishnapatnam
New BG Rail Line project on built, own, operate and transfer basis for a
period of 30 years or on attainment of NPV payback at a discount rate of
14% (whichever is earlier), under a concession agreement signed by the
Company with Ministry of Railways on 237 November, 2007. Thus the rights
of the Company to earn revenue from operations of the project are protected
by the concession agreement.

The volume and size of Company's earnings and profit largely depends on
the volume of traffic movement on the line, which is dependent on several
factors beyond the control of the Company i.e. economic conditions, import/
export policy of the Government, currency fluctuations, level of demand and
supply of various components of traffic moved on the line, etc. To combat
the risks of uncertainty in earnings of the Company the Company is moving

015 : I
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relationship with the stakeholders and customers, providing hassle free
services, reduction of O&M cost, etc.

The risk associated with the project assets of the Company of the
operational line are protected by obtaining the comprehensive insurance
policies for the assets and the risk associated with the assets under |
construction are safeguarded by obtaining contractor’'s all risk insurance
policy.

E

{

forward in the direction of capacity augmentation of the line, building strong (
|

J

1

|

The management is of the view that a business of this size and nature must
be reviewed constantly to identify the risk factors and proper measures
should be adopted in time for risk mitigation, risk handling.

The Board keeps a close watch on the happenings in and outside the
Company that can have any major impact on the Company, its earnings and
its existence. Based on the above factors, the Board is of the opinion that, at ' [
present various risks associated with the Company and its business are low
to moderate level.

|

!

20. Policy on Corporate Social Responsibility r

The Company was not required to constitute a Corporate Social 1
Responsibility Committee and formulate a policy on corporate social
responsibility upto FY 2017-18 as it did not fall within purview of Section

135(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. l;

l

|

21. Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance is about maximizing all stakeholders’ value legally,
ethically and sustainably. At KRCL the goal is to ensure fairness to all
stakeholders so as to enhance and retain their trust. The Company will
continue to uphold the true spirit of Corporate Governance and implement
the best governance practices. It lays emphasis on transparency,
accountability, ethical practices and professional management in its
activities.

22. Subsidiary Companies, Joint Venture or Associate Companies
During the year under review, there are no companies which has become/
ceased to become a Subsidiary/ Joint Ventures / Associate Companies.

23. Deposits _
During the year under review the Company has not accepted any deposits

from the public within the meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act,
2013,
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24. Orders Passed by Regulator or Courts or Tribunals
There is no order passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting
the going concern status and Company’s operations.

25. Directors Responsibility

Your directors would like to inform that the audited accounts containing the
Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 are in full
conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and they
believe that the financial statements reflect fairly the form and substance of
transactions carried out during the year. The financial statements, audited
by the statutory auditors M/s Satyendra Jain & Associates, Chartered
Accountants, reasonably present the Company’s financial condition and
results of operations, particularly considering the unique nature of
operations of the company.

In pursuance of section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors
hereby confirm that:

(a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting
standards had  been followed along with proper explanation relating to
material departures;

(b) The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the
company for that period;

(c) The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act
for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting
fraud and other irregularities;

(d) The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern
basis; and

(e) The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and
operating effectively.
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26. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign
Exchange Earnings & Outgo

a) The particulars required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with the rule 8(3)(A) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 regarding Energy Conservation do not apply.

b) There was no technology absorption during the Financial Year.

c) During the year under review, your Company’s foreign exchange
earnings and outgo were NIL.

27. Disclosure as per the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace

(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013
The Company has zero tolerance policy towards sexual harassment at the
workplace and strives for prevention, prohibition of sexual harassment at
workplace in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules
there under. During the Financial Year 2017-18 the Company had no
women employee and has not received any complaint related to sexual
harassment.

28. Appreciation and Acknowledgement

Your Directors place on record their appreciation for the continued
assistance, valuable guidance and support rendered by the Ministry of
Railways (MoR), Lender Banks, Auditors and shareholders of the Company.
The Directors look forward to your continued support in future.

Your Directors also wish to place on record their sincere appreciation to the
commitment, involvement and dedication by Company’s staff in ensuring
high level of performance and growth of the Company that was achieved
during the year under review.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-

Place: New Delhi Y. Anil Kumar Shilpi Agarwal
Date: 20tk July, 2018 Acting Managing Director Director

(DIN: 02898938) (DIN: 08004390)
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FORM NO. MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on financial year ended on 31.03.2018

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12{1) of the Company
(Management & Administration ) Rules, 2014.

REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

CIN

U45200TG2006PLCO51378

Registration Date

11-10-2006

Name of the Company

Krishnapatnam Railway Company Limited

Category/Sub-category of the
Company

Company limited by shares/Indian non- government company

Address of the Registered office
& contact details

Amsri Faust Complex, Door No D-9-1-164/A to 166,5th Floor,
Sarojini Devi Road Secunderabad, Telangana

Vi

Whether listed company

No

vii

Name , Address & contact details of
the Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any.

No

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

SLNo |Name & Description of main NIC Code of the % to total turnover
products/services Product /service of the company
1 Railway Transport (Freight) 60102 (NIC 2004) 100
2 49120 (NIC 2008)
4
il |PARTICULARS OF HOLDING , SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES NIL
SLNo |Name & Address of the Company CIN/GLN HOLDING/ % OF APPLICABLE
SUBSIDIARY/ SHARES SECTION
ASSOCIATE HELD
1 Nil
2 Nil k
3 Nil
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SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share capital Break up as % to total Equity)
=

Category of Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year

No. of Shares held at the end of the year

% change
during the
year

Demat

Physical

Total

% of Total
Shares

Demat

Physical

Total

% of Total
Shares

|-

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

a) Individual/HUF

0.00].....

b) Central Govt.or
State Govt.

3,50,00,000

3,50,00,000

3,50,00,000

3,50,00,000

12.96|.....

c) Bodies Corporates

23,49,99,995

23,49,99,995|

23,49,99,995|

23,49,99,995

87.04

d) Bank/Fl

e) Any other

SUB TOTAL:(A) (1)

27,00,00,000

27,00,00,000]

100

27,00,00,000,

27,00,00,000]

100

(2) Foreign

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

a) NRI- Individuals

b) Other Individuals

¢) Bodies Corp.

d) Banks/FI

&) Any other...

SUB TOTAL (A) (2)

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

Total Shareholding of
Promoter

(A)= (A)(1)HA)(2)

27,00,00,000

27,00,00,000

100|NIL

27,00,00,000]

27,00,00,000

100

NIL

B. PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

{1) Institutions

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks/F|

C) Cenntral govt

d) State Govt.

e) Venture Capital Fund

f) Insurance Companies

g) FIlS

h) Foreign Venture
Capital Funds

i) Others (specify)

SUB TOTAL (B)(1):

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

(2) Non Institutions

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

a) Bodies corporates

i) Indian

i) Overseas

b) Individuals

i) Individual shareholders
holding nominal share
capital upto Rs.1 lakhs

ii) Individuals shareholders
holding nominal share
capital in excess of Rs. 1
lakhs

c) Others (specify)

SUB TOTAL (B)(2):

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

Total Public Shareholding
(B)= (B){1)+(B)(2)

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

C. Shares held by Custodian
for GDRs & ADRs

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

Grand Total (A+B+C)

27,00,00,000

27,00,00,000|

100

27,00,00,000

27,00,00,000

100
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(i)~ SHARE HOLDING OF PROMOTERS

SINo. |Shareholders Name Shareholding at the Shareholding at the % change in
begginning of the year end of the year share holding
during the
year
NO of shares  |% of total % of shares NO of shares |% of total |% of
shares pledged shares shares
of the encumbered to of the pledged
company total shares company
M/s. Rail Vikas Nigam Limited 8,09,99,996 30.00(..... 8,09,99,996 30.00|.....
1 |(RVNL)
Shri Ashok K. Chaudhary (RVNL) I v e 1 e B o e
2
3 Shri Arun Kumar (RVNL) 1 | O
4 Shri 5. K. Dhiman(RVNL) 1 1 R
5 |shris. C. Agnihotri (RVNL) 1 il ™
M/s. Krishnapatnam Port 8,09,99,999 30.00|..... 8,09,99,999 30.00f.....
6 Company Limited (KPCL)
7 Shri C. Sasidhar (KPCL) | . = 1 e
Governor of the State of Andhra 3,50,00,000 12.96]..... 3,50,00,000 12.96{.... ...
8 Pradesh (GoAP)
M/s. National Mineral 4,00,00,000 14.81)..... 4,00,00,000 14.81].....
Development Corporation
9 Limited (NMDC)
M/s. Bramhani Industries 3,30,00,000 12.22]..... 3,30,00,000 12.22].....
10  |Limited (BIL)
Total 27,00,00,000 100 270000000 100

(i) CHANGE IN PROMOTERS' SHAREHOLDING ( SPECIFY IF THERE IS NO CHANGE): No Change
i

Sl. No. Share holding at the beginning| Cumulative Share holding
of the Year during the year
No. of Shares  |% of total No of shares % of total
shares of the shares of the
company company

At the beginning of the year

Date wise increase/decrease in
Promoters Share holding during
the year specifying the reasons
for increase/decrease (e.g.
allotment/transfer/bonus/swea
t equity etc)

At the end of the year
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(iv)

Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Direcors, Promoters & Holders of GDRs & ADRs)

Sl. No Shareholding at the end of the| Cumulative Shareholding
year during the year
For Each of the Top 10 No.of shares % of total No of shares % of total
Shareholders shares of the shares of the
company company
At the beginning of the year
Date wise increase/decrease in
Promoters Share holding during
the year specifying the reasons
for increase/decrease (e.g.
allotment/transfer/bonus/swea
t equity etc)
At the end of the year (or on the
date of separation, if separated
during the year)
(v) Shareholding of Directors & KMP
Sl. No Shareholding at the beginning | Cumulative Shareholding
of the year during the year
For Each of the Directors & No.of shares % of total No of shares % of total
KMP shares of the shares of the
company company

At the beginning of the year

Date wise increase/decrease in
Promoters Share holding during
the year specifying the reasons
for increase/decrease (e.g.
allotment/transfer/bonus/swea
t equity etc)

At the end of the year
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Vv INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company
including interest
Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total
excluding deposits Loans Indebtedness
Indebtness at the beginning of the
financial year
i) Principal Amount | 8505475783 8505475783
ii) Interest due but not paid 3379009 3379009
iii) Interest accrued but not due 0 0
Total (i+ii+iii) 8508854792 8508854792
Change in Indebtedness during the
. financial year
Additions 794212218 794212218
Reduction 0 0
Net Change 794212218 794212218
Indebtedness at the end of the
financial year
i) Principal Amount | 9299688001 9299688001
ii) Interest due but not paid 1082039 1082039
iii) Interest accrued but not due 0 0
Total (i+ii+iii) 9300770040 9300770040
REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL
Vi PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole time director and/or Manager: NIL
SI.LNo prs of Remuneration Name of the MD/WTD/Manager Total Amount
1 Gross salary
(a) Salary as
per i
provisions
contained
(b) Value of
perquisites
wsaz@ef]l 000 L e e
(c ) Profits
in lieu of
salary
under
2 Stock option
3 Sweat Equity | T
Commission|
as%ofprofit | | R [ S
others (specify)  |.... S e
5 Others, please specify T
Total (A) |
Ceiling as per the Act
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l I
B. Remuneration to other directors:
I l
Sl.No Particulars of Remuneration Name of the Directors Total Amount
1 Independent Directors A Venkateswar N V Triwedi Babu
(a) Fee for
attending 24,000 24,000 48,000
(b) Commission NIL NIL NIL
(c ) Others, please specify NIL NIL NILL
Total (1) | 24,000 24,000( 48,000
2 Other Non Executive Directors NIL NIL
(a) Fee for
attending NIL NIL
(b) Commission NIL NIL
(c ) Others, please specify. NIL NIL
Total 2) | NIL NIL
Total (B)=(1+2) NIL NIL
Total Managerial Remuneration 48,000
Overall Cieling as per the Act.
I

& REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

| | I

Sl. No. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
1 Gross Salary CEO Company CFO Total
Secretary

(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1)
of the Income Tax Act,

1961. 15,09,993 10,91,296 9,55,400 35,56,689

(b) Value of perquisites u/s
17(2) of the Income Tax

Act, 1961 2,000 5'705 = 7’705

(c ) Profits in lieu of salary
under section 17(3) of the
Income Tax Act, 1961

2 Stock Option NIL NIL NIL NIL
3 Sweat Equit NIL NIL NIL NIL
Commission NIL NIL NIL NIL
as % of profit e,

others, specify

5 Others, please specify ~ [..... N

Total 15,11,993 10,97,001 9,55,400 35,64,394
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VII PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: NIL

Type Section of |Brief Details of Authority Appeall made if
the Description Penalty/Punishment/Co (RD/NCLT/Court) any (give details)
Companies mpounding fees
Act imposed

A. COMPANY

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-
Place: New Delhi Y. Anil Kumar Shilpi Agarwal
Date: 20th July, 2018 Acting Managing Director Director

|

l

|_(DIN: 02898938

(DIN: 08004390
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CS ANIL ANAND

(Company Secretary in Practice)
102, G K House, 1st Floor, 187-A, Sant Nagar, New Delhi — 110065
Ph: +91-9873925927 E-mail: csanilanand96@gmail.com

To,

The Members,

Krishnapatnam Railway Company Limited
Amsri Faust Complex,

Door No. D-9-1-164/A to 166, 5th Floor,
Sarojini Devi Road, Secunderabad-500003,

Telangana

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

Management’s Responsibility
1. It is the responsibility of the management of the company to maintain secretarial records,
devise proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and
regulations and to ensure that the systems are adequate and operate effectively.
Secretarial Auditor’s responsibility
2 Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, standards and
procedures followed by the company with respect to secretarial compliances.
3 We believe that audit evidence and information obtained from the company’s management is
adequate and appropriate for us to provide a basis for our opinion.
4 Wherever require, we have obtained the management’s representation about the compliance
of laws, rules, and regulation and happening of events etc.
Disclaimer
5 The secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to future viability of the company nor
of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affair of the

company.

CSANIL ANAND
ACS: 10328
CP NO: 11295

Place: New Delhi
Date: 20.07.2018
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CS ANIL ANAND

(Company Secretary in Practice)
102, G K House, 1st Floor, 187-A, Sant Nagar, New Delhi — 110065
Ph: +91-9873925927 E-mail: csanilanand96@gmail.com

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 315T MARCH, 2018
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Krishnapatnam Railway Company Limited
Amsri Faust Complex,

Door No. D-9-1-164 /A to 166, 5tFloor,
Sarojini Devi Road, Secunderabad-500003,
Telangana

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by M/s. KRISHNAPATNAM
RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED (KRCL) (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit
was conducted in a manner that provides us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial
Audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period
covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2018 complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by KRISHNAPATNAM RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED for the financial
year ended on 31t March, 2018 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i)  Secretarial Standards issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Acts,
Rules, Regulations and Guidelines, Standard, etc. mentioned above.
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We further report that:

The Board of the Company is duly constituted as per Companies Act, 2013. The changes in
the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review
were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

As per the minutes of the meeting duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions
of the Board were unanimously passed and no dissenting views have been recorded.

We further report that, there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We report further that, during the audit period, there were no other specific event/action
in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, etc, having a major
bearing on the Company’s affairs.

Anil Anand
Company Secretary in Practice
ACS: 10328

CP No.:11295

Place: New Delhi
Date: 20.07.2018
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BALANCE SHEET AND
STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS




KRISHNAPATNAM RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2018

(INR in Lakhs)

Particulars I'Lo;e As at 31st March 2018 As at 31st March 2017
|. |ASSETS
1 [Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and equipment 3 339.04 374.46
(b) Other Intangible assets 4 13,784.79 14,450.09
(c) Intangible assets under development 5 1,81,581.30 1,21,650.81
(d) Deffered Tax Asset 14 - -
(e) Financial Assets 6
(i) Others 6.1 1,493.71 1,340.07
(f) Other non-current assets 7 242.79 1,97,442 408.03 1,38,223.46
2 |Current assets
(a) Financial Assets 8
(i) Trade Receivables 8.1 2,018.50 523.33
(il) Cash and cash equivalents 8.2 633.69 468.39
A (iii) Others 8.3 16.41 64.80
(b) Current Tax Assets (Net) 9 119.33 119.33
(C) Other current assets 10 14.10 2,802.03 14.41 1,190.26
Total Assets 2,00,243.66 1,39,413.72
II. |EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 |Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 11 27,000.00 27,000.00
(b) Other Equity 12 45219  27,452.19 (2,127.73) 24,872.27
2 |Liabilities
(i) |Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities 13
(i) Borrowing 13.1 92,996.88 85,054.76
(i) Trade Payables 13.2 271.94 283.98
(b) Deferred Tax Liability 14 123.99 292.16
(c) Other Non-Current Liability 15 150.66 177.64
(d) Provisions 16 2,130.85 95,674.31 1,319.67 87,128.21
(ii) |Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities 17
(i) Trade payables 171 215.95 311.92
(i) Other financial liabilities 172 76,428.06 26,866.87
(b) Other Current liability 18 325.18 174,77
(c) Current Tax Liability (Net) 9 147.97  77,117.16 | 59.68 27,413.24
Total Equity and Liabilities 2,00,243.66 1,39,413.72
lli. |See accompanying notes to the financial statements

As per our Report of even date attached
For Satyendra Jain & Associates

Chartered Accountants

FRN : 012018N

Fpr and on behalf of Board of Directors
e o =T
Y ¥ IARil Kumar | 2_@{

Shilpi Agarwa

Acting Managing Director Director
DIN : 02898938 DIN : 08004330
I i

RS
T. Muni Prasad

Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary
M No. 30019

New Delhi

Place :

Date => & - 57 ‘29\39
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KRISHNAPATNAM RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED
Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31st March 2018

(INR in Lakhs)

For the year ended | For the year ended

sl NoteNo.| " 4qt March 2018 | 31st March 2017
|. |Revenue :
Revenue from operations 19 67.019.19 52,636.38
Il. |Other income 20 180.62 158.39
M. Total Income (I + II) 67,199.81 52,794.77
IV. |Expenses:
Operation & Maintenance Expense 21 61,946.68 507754.64
Employee benefits expenses 22 31.53 20.53
Finance costs 23 632.36 575.12
Depreciation and amortization 24 704.46 702.59
Other Expenses 25 73437 688.95
Total Expenses (V) 64,049.41 52,741.83
v K;-)ofit!!oss Before exceptional items and Tax (Il - 3,150.40 52 94
VI. |Exceptional items & B
VII. |Profit/(Loss) before tax (V - VI) 3,150.40 52.94

VIIIl. | Tax expense:
(1) Current tax

- For the year 731.47 65.01
- For earlier years (net) 7.19 -
(2) Deferred tax (net) 26 (168.18) (20.47)
Total Tax Expense (VIII) 570.48 44 .54
X Profit/(loss) for the period from continuing 2.579.92 8.40

operation (VII - VIII)
X |Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations - -
Xl |Tax Expense of discontinued operations = =
Xl Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations (after tax) .
(X-X1) -

Xl | Profit/(loss) for the period (IX+XII) 2,579.92 8.40
XIV |Other Comprehensive Income

A. (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit and
loss

(i) Income Tax relating to ltems that will not be
reclassified to profit and loss

B. (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit and losg = -

(i) Income Tax relating to Items that will be
reclassified to profit and loss

Total Comprehensive Income for the period (I1X
XV |+X! (Comprehensive profit and other 2,579.92 8.40
comprehensive income for the period)
Earnings Per Equity Share;

(For Continuing Operation)

(1) Basic 27 0.96 0.00
(2) Diluted 27 0.96 0.00
XVII [Earnings Per Equity Share:
(For Discontinuing Operation)

XV

(1) Basic 27 z &

(2) Diluted 27 B - °
XVIIl{Earnings Per Equity Share:

(1) Basic 27 0.96 0.00

(2) Diluted 27 0.96 0.00

As per our Report of even date attached
For Satyendra Jain & Associates or and on behalf of Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants / *
FRN : 012018N . / ——Aj] :
\ nil umar Shilpi Agarwal ‘;‘/01 ':f/l] &
[ Acting Managing Director Director

DIN : 02858938 DIN : 08004390 o
M — O
=
L3 rilok Garg I. Muni Prasad
x N
M No. 07278 \/,-':(,_}‘—‘\,\,J Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Place : New Delfif-=/ DELT M No. 30019
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KRISHNAPATNAM RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March 2018

(INR in Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended 31st March For the year ended 31st
2018 March 2017
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit before taxation 3,150.40 52.94
Adjustment for :
Depreciation, amortization and impairment 704.46 702.59
Interest Expense 452.27 462.31
Unwinding of discount-receivable from SCR (153.64) (131.41)
Unwinding of discount-overhead cost payable 37.11 41.06
Income from reversal of deferred Overhead costs payable (26.98) (26.98)
Interest on Provision for resurfacing 135.72 71.75
Operating Profit before operating capital changes (1) 4,299.35 1,172.26
Adjustment for :-
Decrease / (Increase) in Trade Receivables
/ Loans & Advances (1.495.17) S
Decrease / (Increase) in Other Financial current Assets 48.39 (55.55)
Decrease / (Increase) in Other current Assets 0.31 -0.10
Decrease / (Increase) in Other Non Current Assets 2.92 2.92
Decrease / (Increase) in Other Non Current Financial Assets - (66.17)
"(Decrease) / Increase in Non Current Trade Payables (49.15) (67.00)
(Decrease) / Increase in Current Trade Payables (95.97) (78.82)
(Decrease) / Increase in Other Financial Liability 49,561.19 -18,678.62
(Decrease) / Increase in Other Current Liability 150.41 -6.17
Decrease /(Increase) in Current Assets = =
(Decrease) / Increase in Other Non Current Liability - -
(Decrease) / Increase in non-current Provision 675.45 623.96
(2) 48,798.38 (18,110.21)
Cash generated from operation (1+2) 53,097.73 (16,937.95)
Income Tax Paid (650.37) (5.33)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A) 52,447.36 (16,943.28)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital Expenditure on Fixed Assets, Including Capital (59,771.91) (46,373.72)
Advances
Increase in deposits having orignal maturity of more than
three months
Interest Income = =
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) (59,771.91), (46,373.72)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings 7,942.12 63,357.88
Interest Expenses (452.27) (462.31)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C) 7,489.85 62,895.57
NET INCREASE IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT (A+B+C) 165.30 (421.43)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT (OPENING) (D) 468.39 889.83
Balances with banks-Current Account 468.39 889.83
Deposits with Bank with less than 3 months maturity o g
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT (CLOSING) (E) 633.69 468.39
Balances with banks-Current Account 633.69 468.39
Deposits with Bank with less than 3 months maturity -
NET INCREASE IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT (E-D) = 165.30 (421.43)

As per our Report of even date attached

and pn behalf of Board of Directors

20|78

,.——C'\CL\.QL

For Satyendra Jain & Associates

Chartered Accountants
FRN : 012018N

Shilpi Agarwal
Director
DIN : 08004390

Kug
Atting'Managing Director
DIN : 02898938

o YO
'l HARTERED 1=
{ t;_(LACa OUNTAN ';'._3);

U U
* Trilok Garg T.MuniPragad — ©
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
M No. 30019
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
KRISHNAPATNAM RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st March-2018

A. Equity share capital

(INR in Lakhs)
Particulars Number of Share in Amount
Lakhs
Balance at April 1, 2016 2,700.00 27,000.00

Changes in equity share capital during the year

Issue of equity shares capital during the year = -
Balance at March 31, 2017 2,700.00 27,000.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year

Issue of equity shares capital during the year . =
Balante at March 31, 2018 2,700.00 27,000.00

B. Other Equity (INR in Lakhs)
Reserve & Surplus

Particulars Total
Retained Earnings

Balance at April 1, 2016 (2,136.14) (2,136.14)
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors - -
Restated Balance at April 1, 2016 (2,136.14) (2,136.14)
Profit for the year 8.40 8.40
Other Comprehensive Income for the year (net of income tax) 0.00 0.00
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 8.40 8.40
Dividends paid = -
Balance at March 31, 2017 (2,127.73) (2,127.73)
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors - “
Restated Balance as at March 31, 2017 (2,127.73) (2,127.73)
Profit for the year 2,579.92 2,579.92
Other Comprehensive Income for the year (net of income tax) - -
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 2,579.92 2,579.92
Dividends paid = -
Balance at March 31, 2018 452.19 452.19

%6’«%

L H‘CD*C"X'}‘:L

—

032



Accounting policies and measurement methods

Note: - 1 Corporate Information

Krishnapatnam Railway Company Limited (KRCL) is a public limited company domiciled and was incorporated in India on October 11,
2006 as a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) for the purpose of constructing the Krishnapatnam-Obuvallirapalle New Railway Line (Andhra
Pradesh) Project. The Company is a Joint Venture between Rail Vikas Nigam Limited (RVNL), Krishnapatnam Port Company Limited,
National Mineral Development Corporation, Government of Andhra Pradesh, and Bramhani Industries Limited. The registered office of
the company is located at Door no. 9-1-164/A to 166 5th Floor Amsti Faust Complex Sarojini Devi Road, Secunderabad, Andhra
Pradesh.

The Company has entered into a Concession Agreement with Ministry of Railways (MoR), Government of India dated 23rd November,
2007 in terms of which the Ministry of Railways (Concession Authority) has authorized the Company (Concessionaire) to develop,
finance, design, engineer, procure, construct, operate and maintain the Project Railway and to exercise and/or enjoy the rights, powers,
benefits, privileges authorizations and entitlements upon its completion. Further, in terms of the said agreement, the South Central
Railway (SCR) will lease the existing Land to the company for the purpose of the Project, lease rental for which shall be as per the extant
policy of the MoR as revised from time to time and the new land acquired by it in lieu of a nominal Annual Leas€ rental of * 1 as referred
to in the Lease Deed forming part of the Concession Agreement. Further new Land acquisition will be done by KRCL (through SCR) and
will remain the property of KRCL till the expiry of 30 year lease period or Net present Value (NPV) payback equal to equity investment
@14% whichever is earlier. In case the NPV payback is reached earlier than 30 years, the concession agreement would stand
terminated and the project line would be repossessed by railway.

The Operation and Maintenance of the Phase 1 project railway is being conducted by South Central Railway (SCR) under its right, vide
agreement dated 6th January, 2012 which is co-terminus with the Concession Agreement, entered into between the MoR and KRCL.
Further, in terms of this agreement, SCR is to operate traffic (Passenger & Freight), collect revenue, maintain the facility and is required
to pass-on the apportioned revenue and operation & Maintenance cost to Krishnapatnam Railway Company Limited (KRCL).

Phase-1 of the Project involving the laying of railway line of 24.5 Km from Krishnapatnam to Venktachalam (as per concession
agreement signed on 06-01-2012) has been completed and commercial traffic is being operated on the same w.e.f from November 15th,
2008.

Phase-2 of the project is under construction and expenditure incurred on same is appearing as intangibles under development.

Phase-3 of the Project involving the doubling of the track laid down in phase 1 has been completed and commercial traffic is being
operated on the same w.e.f. from 2nd March 2014,

-

The financial statements are authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the board of directors on 20th July 2018

Note: - 2 Basis of Preparation

2.1 Statement of Compliance

The financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2018 have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind-AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, as companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
and Companies (Indian accounting standards) Amendment Rules 2017.

2.2 Basis of Measurement
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and on an accrual basis, except for the following item
that have been measured at fair value as required by relevant Ind-AS.

(a) Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer note no. 6.1 and 13.2)

2.3 Use of estimates and judgment

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of financial statements and the reported amount of income and expenses. Examples of such estimates includes
estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment . Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Future results could differ due to changes in these estimates
and difference between the actual result and the estimates are recognised in the period in which the results are known /materialize.

All financial information presented in Indian rupees and all values are rounfed\to the nearest lakhs up to two decimals except where

otherwise stated. 4&@\ &g/. l
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Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash
nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing
activities of the Company are segregated based on the available information.

For the purposes of statement of cash flow , cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, cash at banks and demand deposits with
banks, net of outstanding bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand are considered part of the Company's cash management
system.

Amendment to Ind-AS 7:

Effective April 1, 2017, the company has adopted the amendment to Ind-AS 7, which require the entities to provide disclosures that
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from
cash flows and non-cash changes, suggesting inclusion of a reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the Balance
Sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities, to meet the disclosure requirement. The adoption of amendment did not have any
material effect on the financial statements.

2.5 Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company
operates (i.e. Functional Currency). The financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is the functional and presentation
currency of the company.

2.6 Property, p'lant and equipment _
(a) Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any Cost of asset
includes the following

(i)  Cost directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets

(i)  Present value of the estimated costs of dismantling & removing the items & restoring the site on which it is located if
recognition criteria are met.

(b) Cost of replacement, major inspection, repair of significant parts are capitalized if the recognition criteria are met.

(c) An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from continued use of assets. Any gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant an equipment is determined
as the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in statement of profit or loss.

Depreciation
(a) Depreciation on Property, plant and Equipment is provided on pro-rata basis on written down value (WDV) on all assets on this basis
of life provided by the Companies Act 2013.

(b) Each part of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is depreciated separately if the cost of part is significant in relation to the total
cost of the item and useful life of that part is different from the useful life of remaining asset.

The estimated useful life of assets for significant items of property plant and equipment are as follows:

Particulars Useful Life (In Years)
Office Building 60
Furniture & Fixture 10
Office Equipment's 5
EDP Assets 3

(c) Leasehold improvements are amortized over the period of lease from the month in which such improvements are capitalised or cver|
the useful life as computed under Companies Act 2013 whichever is lower.

(d) Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date, with the effect of change in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

2.7 Intangible Assets
Freight Sharing Right (Railway Line under SCA)

The company recognizes an intangible asset arising from a service concession arrangement when it has a right to charge for usage of
the concession infrastructure. An intangible asset received as consideration for providing construction or upgrade services in a service
concession arrangement is measured at fair value on initial recognition by reference to the fair value of the services provided.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the intangible asset is measured at cost, which includes capitalized borrowing costs, less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses. 2

The estimated useful life of an intangible asset in a service concession arrangement is the period from when the company is able to
charge the public for the use of the infrastructure to the end of the conces period (i.e. 30 year of operation or Net present Vaiue

(NPV) payback equal to e nt @14% whichever is earlier.). _
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Freight sharing right is amortised using the straight line method on prorate basis from the date of addition or from the date when the right
brought in to service to the expiry of 30 year of operation or Net present Value (NPV) payback equal to equity investment @14%
whichever is earlier.

Amortisation methods and useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date, with the effect of change in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

The carrying value of intangible asset is reviewed for impairment annually or more often if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

2.8 Intangible Assets under development
Freight sharing right under development
Expenditure which can be directly identifiable & fair value adjustment of land related to the service concession arrangements are
recognised to freight sharing right under development
The following amounts are reduced from the intangible under development:

(a) Interest earned on the Mobilization Advances given in respect of the project execution.

(b) Amount received on sale of tender.

(c) Interest received on FD created our of Borrowed fund, which was taken for exclusively project expenditure.

2.9 Provisions
Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation.
Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the Balance sheet date.
Provisions are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

Provision which expected to be settled beyond 12 months are measured at the present value by using pre-tax discount rate that reflects
the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as interest expenses.

-

In respect of Operation & Maintenance expenses through SCR, same are accounted for on the basis of information received from South
Central Railway (SCR). Whenever such information is not received, same is accounted for on pro-rata estimated basis.

2.10 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be
reliably measured.

a) Operating revenue

The operating income of the company is recognized on accrual basis upon the information as and when received from South Central
Railways for the share of revenue due to the company for the operations. The period for which revenue is not intimated by SCR, same is
recognized and accounted for on pro-rata estimated basis.

b) Construction Contract Revenue under SCA

Revenue related to construction or upgrade services under a service concession arrangement is recognized based on the siage of
completion of the work performed, when the outcome of construction contract can be measured reliably and where the outcome of
construction contract can not be measured reliably revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract cost incurred that is probable will
be recoverable.

c) Other Revenue Recognition -
Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the interest rate applicable

using Effective Interest rate Method.
2.11 Leasing

Leases are classified as operating lease whenever the terms of the lease doesn't transfer substantially all the risk and rewards of|
ownership to the lessee.

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Where the rentals are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor expected inflationary cost
increases, such increases are recognised in the year in which such benefit accrue. Contingent rentals arising under operating lease are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

2.12 Impairment of non-financial assets

In accordance with Indian Accounting Standard-36 Impairment of Assets, the carrying amounts of Company's assets are reviewed at
each Balance Sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated as the higher of the net selling price or the value in use. An impairment loss is recognized whenever the
carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable/amount.

2.13 Borrowing Cost




General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, are
capitalised as part of the cost of such assets till such time the assets are substantially ready for their intended use. A qualifying asset is
an asset that necessarily requires a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowings costs are recognized
in the statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred.

2.14 Employee Benefits

Short Term Employee Benefits

The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid for the services rendered are recognized as an expelise
during the period when the employees render the services.

2.15 Taxes

a) Current income tax

(i) Tax on income for the current year is determined on the basis of taxable income and tax credits computed in accordance with the
provision of the Income Tax Act, 1961, based on the expected outcome of the assessment /appeals.

(i) Current income tax assets and liabilities for current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities, liability for additional taxes if any, is provided / paid as and when assessments are completed.

(iii) Current tax related to OCI Item are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI).

b) Deferred tax

(i) Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for temporary differences which is computed using the tax rates and tax
laws that have-been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

(i) Deferred income tax asset are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

(iii) The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized.

(iv) Deferred tax related to OCI Item are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI).

Minimum Alternative Tax credit is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the company willL
pay normal income tax during the specified period. Such asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and the carrying amount of the
MAT credit asset is written down to the extent there is no longer a convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal
income tax during the specified period. .

2.16 Earnings Per Share

In determining basic earnings per share, the company considers the net profit attributable to equity shareholders. The number of shares
used in computing basic earnings per share is the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period. In determining
diluted earnings per share, the net profit attributable to equity shareholders and weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the period are adjusted for the effect of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.17 Contingent Liabilities and contingent Assets

(a) Contingent Liabilities are disclosed in either of the following cases:

(i) A present obligation arising from a past event, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; or

(i) A reliable estimate of the present obligation cannot be made; or

(ii) A possible obligation, unless the probability of outflow of resource is remote.

(b) Contingent assets is disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

(c) Contingent Liability and Provisions needed against Contingent Liability and Contingent Assets are reviewed at each Reporting date.

(d) Contingent Liability is net of estimated provisions considering possible outflow on settlement.

2.18 Non-derivative financial assets

The company recognizes a financial asset arising from a service concession arrangement when it has an unconditional contractual right
to receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor for the construction or upgrade services provided. Such

financial assets are measured at fair value on initial recognition and classified as loans and receivables. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the financial assets are measured at amortized cost.

If the company is paid for the construction services partly by a financial asset and partly by an intangible asset, then each component of
the consideration is accounted for separately and is recognized initially at the fairyalue of the consideration received or receivable.

2.19 Fair Value Measurement




Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

= in the principal market for the asset or liability, or

* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the company. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest. The company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data1
are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

Assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

1- Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

2 -Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable

3 -Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers
have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

At the reporting date, the Company analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be re-measured
or re-assessed as per the accounting policies. For this analysis, the Company verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by
agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The Company also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether
the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

The fair value of an intangible asset received as consideration for providing construction services in a service concession arrangement is
estimated by reference to the fair value of the construction services provided. When the company receives an intangible asset and a
financial asset as consideration for providing construction services in a service concession arrangement, the company estimates the fair
value of intangible assets as the difference between the fair value of the construction services provided and the fair value of the financial
asset received. :

2,20 Dividend to equity holders
Dividend paid/payable shall be recognised in the year in which the related dividends are approved by shareholders or board of directors

as appropriates.

2.21 Financial instruments:-

(a) Initial recognition and measurement

Financial Instruments recognized at its fair value plus or minus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
the financial instruments.

(b) Subsequent measurement

Financial Assets

financial assets are classified in following categories:

(i) At Amortised Cost

A financial asset shall be measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

(a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows
and

(b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate method less impairment if any. The EIR amortisation is included
in finance income in the statement of profit and loss.

(ii) At Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criterfa are met: \

- The objective of the business mode_[.:i§\achieved both by collecting contractiial cash flows and selling the financial assets, and

- The asset’s contractual cash flows tépresent SPPI. § M
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Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value
movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the company recognizes interest income, impairment
losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On de-recognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCl is reclassified from the equity to P&L. Interest earned is recognised using the EIR method. -

(iii) At Fair Value Through Profit and Loss

FVTPL is a residual category for financial Assets. Any financial assets, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized
cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the company may elect to designate financial asset, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL.
If doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency. The company has not designated any financial asset as at
FVTPL.

Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L.

Financial liabilities

(i) Financial liabilities at Amortised Cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost represented by trade and other payables, security deposits and retention money are initially
recognized at fair value, and subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

(i) Financial liabilities at FVTPL

The company has not designated any financial liabilities at FVTPL.

(c) Derecognition

Financial Asset

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognized only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires or it transfers the financial assets and substantially all risks s and 1ewa-ds
of the ownership of the asset.

Financial Liability

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and|
the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income statement.

(d) Impairment of financial assets:

Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss. The Company follows'
simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivable. The application of simplified approach does not
require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date, right from its initial recognition

Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost and|
FVTOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applies on whether there has been significant increase in credit risk.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income/expense in the statement of profit and
loss.
2.22 Non-current Assets held for Sale

Non-current assets are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying amount is to be recovered principally through a sale
transaction and a sale is considered highly probable. The sale is considered highly probable only when the asset or disposal group is
available for immediate sale in its present condition, it is unlikely that the sale will be withdrawn and sale is expected within one year from
the date of the classification. Disposal groups classified as held for sale are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell. Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are not depreciated or amortised once classified as held for sale.
Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately in the balance sheet.

If the criteria stated by IND AS 105 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations” are no longer met, the disposal
group ceases to be classified as held as held for sale. Non-current asset that ceases to be classified as held for sale are measured at ine
lower of (i) its carrying amount before the asset was classified as held for sale .adjusted for depreciation that would have been
recognised had that asset not been classified as held for sale, and (ii) its recoverable amount at the date when the disposal group ceases

to be classified as held for sale.
B @
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Note: - 3
Property, Plant and Equipment (INR in Lakhs)
Particulars Officy  Fusmituenf Offica EDP Assets Total
Building  Fixture equipments
Cost or deemed cost
At 1 April 2016 477.49 0.20 0.17 1.39 479.25
Additions 0.10 . 0.07 0.17
Disposals/Adjustments - E B - B
At 31 March 2017 477.49 0.30 0.17 1.46 479.42
Additions - 0.20 0.40 0.60
Disposals/Adjustments - - 0.07 (0.07) 5
At 31 March 2018 477.49 0.30 0.44 1.79 480.02
Depreciation and impairment
At 1 April 2016 64.14 0.08 0.04 1.10 65.38
Depreciation charge for the year 39.27 0.04 0.06 0.19 39.56
Impairment - - - - -
Disposals/Adjustments - - - - -
. At 31 March 2017 103.41 0.12 0.10 1.29 104.94
Depreciation charge for the year 35.54 0.05 0.12 0.33 36.04
lImpairment
Disposals/Adjustments - - - - -
At 31 March 2018 138.95 0.17 0.22 1.62 140.98
Net book value
At 31 March 2018 338.54 0.13 0.22 0.17 339.04
At 31 March 2017 374.08 0.18 0.07 0.17 374.46
At 1 April 2016 413.35 0.12 0.13 0.29 413.90

Note 3.1 : The Company has purchased a property for the purpose of administration which is temporarily idle with carrying
amount of Rs. 338.54 Lakhs as at 31 March 2018 (as at 31 March 2017: Rs. 374.08 Lakhs).

Note 3.2 : Property Plant & Equipment with a carrying amount of Rs. 339.04 Lakhs,as at 31st March 2018 (as at 31st March
2017: Rs. 374.46 Lakhs) are charged with bank to secure Company's Bank loans.

/
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Note: - 4
Other Intangible assets

TN

(INR in Lakhs)

Particulars Revenue Total
Sharing Right

Cost or deemed cost
At 1 April 2016 2527523 25275.23
Additions 120.06 120.06
Disposals/Adjustments - -
At 31 March 2017 25,395.29 25,395.29
Additions 3.12 3.12
Disposals/Adjustments
At 31 March 2018 25,398.41 25,398.41
Amortisation and impairment
At 1 April 2016 10,282.17 10,282.17
Amortisation for the year 663.03 663.03
Impairment - -
Disposals/Adjustments B -
At 31 March 2017 10,945.20 10,945.20
Amortisation for the year 668.42 668.42
Impairment =
Disposals/Adjustments -
At 31 March 2018 11,613.62 11,613.62
Net book value
At 31 March 2018 13,784.79 13,784.79
At 31 March 2017 14,450.09 14,450.09
At1 April 2016 14,993.06 14,993.06

Note 4.1 : Amortisation on other intangible assets are included in Note no -24 of Depreciation and Amortisation.

Note 4.2 : All Intangible with a carrying amount of Rs.13784.79 Lakhs as at 31st March 2018 (as at 31st March 2017
‘Rs.14,450.09 Lakhs) are charged with bank to secure the Company's bank loans.

Note 4.3 : Assets of phase-1 & phase-3 of the com

November, 2007.
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pany are insured as required under the Concession Agreement dated 23rd
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Note: - 5
Intangible Under Development

(INR in Lakhs)

Revenue sharing
Particulars right under Total
development

Cost or deemed cost

At 1 April 2016 72,823.94 72,823.94
Additions 48,826.87 48,826.87
Disposals/Adjustments - =

At 31 March 2017 1,21,650.81 1,21,650.81
Additions 59,930.49 59,930.49
Disposals/Adjustments - =

At 31 March 2018 1,81,581.30 1,81,581.30

Note 5.1 Title of Leasehold Land shown under the head Intangibles under development and Intangible Assets represents land acquired
/ to be acquired is with South Central Railway and the company hold the leasehold rights on the Land till the period of Concession
Agreement i.e. 30 years or on to attainment of the Net Present Value (NPV) payback equal to equity investment @14% whichever is
earlier ~In case the NPV payback is reached earlier than 30 years, the concession agreement would stand terminated and the project
line would be repossessed by railway.

The Leasehold Land acquired by KRCL (through SCR) will remain the property of KRCL till the period of Concession Agreement and
thereafter will revert to SCR since, the value of land will be recovered from SCR.

Note 5.2 Capitalised borrowing costs

Intangible under development includes expenditure on account of interest Payable to Rail Vikas Nigam Limited (Project Contractor),
during the year ending 31st March 2018 is Rs.2414.55 Lakhs (31 March 2017: Rs.4219.29/-) during the period for delay in payment for
project expenditure as calculated by RVNL on balance outstanding in the books of accounts of RVNL and as accepted by Company.
Further, RVNL has provided infrastructure and other indirect establishment facilities to KRCL for which no amount is charged by RVNL.
The amount of borrowing costs capitalised for loan taken from banks, during the year ended 31st March 2018 is Rs. 9256.90/- Lakhs
(31 March 2017 : Rs.2965 Lakhs). The rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation was the effective
interest rate of the specific borrowing.

Note 5.3 Capitalization of interest earned on Fixed Deposits
Amount of Rs.137.90 Lakhs (31 march 2017 Rs.42.19 Lakhs) towards Interest earned on Fixed Deposit out of borrowed fund which
was taken for project expenditure PH -1l has been reduced from Intangible Assets during the year ended 31st March 2018.

Note 5.4

Intangible Assets and Intangible Under Development includes expenditure on account of Directional & General Charges (D&G charges)
amounting to Rs.3780.43 Lakhs/- (Previous Year Rs.3517.13 Lakhs) as charged by RVNL (Project Contractor) during the period which
is as per the clause no. 10.2 of Construction Agreement dated 29th September 2011, is subject to change. Cumulative D&G Charges
up to 31st March 2018 is Rs. 14875.43 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 11,095/- Lakhs) is subject to change. Break up of "D & G charges"
included in Intangible under development and intangible assets related to phase 3 during the period is as under:

Particulars (INR in Lakhs) (INR in Lakhs)
Year Ended 31.3.2018 Year Ended 31.3.2017
1. Civil Works 3,335.86 - 3505.10
2. Signalling & Telecom 126.60 0.10
3. Electric Works 317.97 11.93
Total 3,780.43 3517.13
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Note: - 6

Financial assets
6.1 Other Financial Assets

¥ S 5, iy '\-__'_' "_'."'.'."-Z AT ‘.‘Hl_;l\immﬂ'aﬂ'wﬁw

(INR in Lakhs)

Particulars

Asat3istMarch .. .; 316t March 2017

2018
At Amortised cost
Receivable from South Central Railways under
Service Concession Arrangement (Value of land) DS s
(Refer note-28)
Total 1,493.71 1,340.07
Note: -7
Other non-current assets -
(INR in Lakhs)
Particulars G %ﬁg”a"’h As at 31st March 2017
a) Capital Advances
Advances towards Project Expenditure
A - Mohilisation Advance 234.96 397.28
b) Other than Capital Advances
Maintenance Charges Paid in Advance for Building e 1075
Total 242.79 408.03
Note: - 8
Financial Assets - Current
8.1 Trade Receivables
(INR in Lakhs)
Particulars As &t %ﬁg”a"’h As at 31st March 2017
Trade Receivables
Unsecured, considered good
- Trade receivables 2,018.50 523.33
Total 2,018.50 523.33

Note 8.1.1 The trade receivable represents the amount receivable from the South Central
Railways (SCR) being the gross revenue apportioned and are non interest bearing. Since, the
revenue apportioned by the South Central Railways is on provisional basis and the final figures
may vary, the above trade receivables and their classification is subject to change. Further, the
amount of receivable being Rs. 2018.50/- lakhs (March 31st 2017 Rs. 523.33/- Lakhs) is subject
to confirmation by the South Central Railways.

Note 8.1.2 Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 15 to 75
days.

Note 8.1.3 No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company
either severally or jointly with any other person. No any trade or other receivable are due from
firm or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or member.

Note: - 8.2 =

Cash and Cash Equivalent
(INR in Lakhs)

As at 31st March

Particulars As at 31st March 2017

2018
Balances with banks:
— On current accounts 633.69 468.39
— Deposits with original maturity of less than . B
three months
tal 633.69 468.39
wl .
>0 .
%{CCOU" te 8.2.1 As at 31st March 2018 the company has available Rs. 303.12/- Lakhs ( As at 31st
ek arch 2017, Rs. 8245.24/- Lakhs ) of undrawn committgd bofrowing facilities. : i
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8.3 Other Financial Assets-Current

(INR in Lakhs)
Particulars Ak :;‘:::tBMarch As at 31st March 2017
a) Other Receivables
Receivable from Banks towards Interest 10.23 64.80
Receivable from RVNL 6.18
Total 16.41 64.80
Note: -9
Current Tax
(INR in Lakhs)
Particulars Asat :;;sl:tsMarch As at 31st March 2017
Current Tax Assets
Advance Tax Paid / Tax deducted at source 119.33 118.33
Total 119.33 119.33
Current Tax Liability
Current Year Tax 731.47 65.01
Tax Deducted at Source & Advance tax Paid -583.50 -5.33
Total 147.97 59.68
Note: - 10
Other current assets
(INR in Lakhs)
Particulars e g;ﬁgmarch As at 31st March 2017
a) Other than Capital Advances
Maintenance Charges Building Assets 2.92 2:92
Other Advances 0.05 0.03
b) Others
Prepaid Expenses 1143 11.46
Total 14.10 14.41
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Note: - 11
Equity Share capital

(INR in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st March 2018  As at 31st March 2017
Authorized share capital -
27,00,00,000 Equity Share of Rs 10 each 27,000.00 27,000.00
(March 31,2018: 27,00,00,000 Equity Share of Rs 10
each)
(March 31st,2017: 27,00,00,000 Equity Share of Rs 10
each)

27,000.00 27,000.00
Issued/Subscribed and Paid up Capital
27,00,00,000 Equity Share of Rs 10 each 27,000.00 27,000.00
(March 31,2018: 27,00,00,000 Equity Share of Rs 10
each)
(March 31,2017: 27,00,00,000 Equity Share of Rs 10
each)

27,000.00 27,000.00

Reconciliation of the number of equity shares and share capital
As at 31st March 2018  As at 31st March 2017

No. of No. of

Particulars Amount in Amount in
shares T khs  Shares T e
(in Lakhs) (in Lakhs)
Issued/Subscribed and Paid up equity Capital 2700.00 27.000.00 2,700.00  27,000.00

outstanding at the beginning of the year
Add: Shares Issued during the year = = = s

Issued/Subscribed and Paid up equity Capital
outstanding at the end of the year 2,700.00 27,000.00 2,700.00  27,000.00

Terms/Rights attached to Equity Shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each holder of equity
shares is entitled to one vote per share and also to dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the
board of directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining
assets of the company after distributing all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the
number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares in the company

As at 31st March 2018  As at 31st March 2017
No. of % holding No. of

N f h i
ame of the shareholder - — ln the Shares i:sﬂr:glgll:sgs
(in Lakhs) class (in Lakhs)
1 Rail Vikas Nigam Limited (RVNL) 810.00 30.00% 810.00  30.00%
2 Krishnapatnam Port Company Ltd.(KPCL) 810.00  30.00% 810.00  30.00%
3 National Mineral Development Corporation (NMDC) 400.00 14.81% 400.00 14.81%
4 State of Andhra Pradesh (GOAP) 350.00 12.97% 350.00 12.97%
5 Bramhani Industries Limited (BIL) 330,00 12.22% 330.00 12.22%
Total 2,700.00 100% 2,700.00 100%

Aggregate number of shares issued for consideration other than cash , bonus shares issued and

shares bought back during the year:-

Barticutan As at 31st As at 31
articulars March 2018 March 2017

Equity Shares issued for consideration other than cash = \ =
s issued as fully paid up bonus shares - s
t back . - -

oss NN ) & MC,_LL




Note: -12
Other Equity
(INR in Lakhs)
. As at 31st March  As at 31st March
Particulars 2018 2017
Retained Earnings (Refer Note 12.1) 452.19 -2,127.73
Total 452.19 -2,127.73

Note 12.1 Retained Earnings
(INR in Lakhs)

As at 31st March  As at 31st March

Particul

articulars 2018 2017
Opening Balance (2;127.73) (2,136.13)
Profit for the period 2,579.92 8.40
Total 452.19 (2,127.73)

Distributions Made and Proposed
Amount (Rs. in Lakhs)

As at 31st March
2017

Particulars As at 31st March 2018

Cash dividend on Equity shares declared and paid

Interim Dividend for the period ended on March 31st 2018 Rs. Nil
per share (March 31st 2017 Nil)

Dividend Distribution Tax paid on above = =

Proposed Final Dividend on Equity Shares Nil Nil

Note: - 13
Financial Liability-Non Current

13.1 Borrowings

As at 31st March  As at 31st March

Particulars 2018 2017
Secured- At Amortised Cost
Term Loans

From Banks 92,996.88 85,054.76
Total 92,996.88 85,054.76

Note 13.1.1 Summary of borrowing arrangement

i) A Term Loan of Rs. 93300/- lakh has been taken by the company from the Banks against the
revised project cost of Rs. 206042/- lakh under the common Loan agreement, out of which Rs.
92996.88/- Lakhs has been disbursed by the Bank up to 31st Marc 18.
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Note 13.1.2 Terms of security for loan are as follows: -

The Secured Obligations shall, to the satisfaction of the Secured Parties, be secured to the extent
permitted under the Concession Agreement by:-

a) a first mortgage and charge on all the Borrower's immovable properties, both present and future
(save and except Project Site);(see note-3 and 4)

b) a first charge on all the Borrower's tangible moveable assets, including movable plant and
machinery, machinery spares, tools and accessories, furniture, fixtures, vehicles and all other movable
assets, both present and future (save and except the Rolling Stocks);(see note-3)

c) a first charge on all bank accounts of the Borrower, including but not limited to the Trust and
Retention Account and the Retention Accounts, or any account in substitution thereof established and
opened pursuant to the provisions of the TRA Agreement or any of the Project Documents wherein all
revenues, Drawdowns, Receivables and other funds of the Borrower shall be deposited from time to
time and all Permitted Investments or other securities representing all amounts credited to the TRA
Account;(see note-8.2)

d) a first charge on all Receivables (including profits of the Borrower after provisions fér Tax and
dividends (if any as permitted under this Agreement)) of the Borrower pertaining to the Project; (see
note-8.1)

e) a first charge on all intangibles of the Borrower including but not limited to goodwill, intellectual
property rights, undertakings, present and future; (see note-4)

f) a first charge on the uncalled capital of the Borrower;
g) a first charge/assignment of the security interest

(i) on all the rights, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the Borrower in, to and
under the Project Documents (excluding the Concession Agreement); all as amended, varied or
supplemented from time to time; and

(i) all the rights, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the Borrower in, to and
under any letter of credit, guarantee including contractor guarantees, liquidated damages and
performance bonds provided by any party to the Project Documents (excluding the Concession
Agreement); =

Provided that the aforesaid, mortgages, charges, assignments and guarantees shall in all respects
rank pari-passu inter-se amongst the Lenders without any preference or priority to one over the other

or others.

Note 13.1.3 Terms of Repayment

The Facility have a door-to-door tenure of 16 years and 4 months. The Facility shall be repaid in 40
(forty) equal quarterly instalments starting from 31st October, 2018.

Note 13.1.4 Interest Terms
The Applicable Interest rate is SBI Base rate plus spread of 1.5%.

13.2 Trade Payables (INR in Lakhs)

Particul As at 31st March  As at 31st March
aEtiars 2018 2017

At Amortised Cost

Overhead Cost Payable (SCR) 271.94 283.98

Total 271.94 - 283.98

Total Financial Liabilities 93,268.82 85,338.74

de payable represents Overhead cost payable (i.e. Salary for RPF,medical and, personnel,
unts and corresponding retirement benefits etc.) which are not payable to South Central Railway
is deferred for first five year of operation and same being payable by the company over a period
8519 years commencing from the 6th year of operation as pek the O&M agreement. In terms of clause

/8 of the operations and maintenance agreement. P
W == sC
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Note: - 14
Deferred Tax
(INR in Lakhs)
Parficulais As at 31st March  As at 31st March
2018 2017
Deferred tax liability 861.43 1,002.57
Deferred tax assets (737.44) (710.41)
Deferred tax liability (Net of deferred tax assets) 123.99 292.16
The balance comprises to temporary differences attributable to:
Deferred tax assets
Unused Tax Losses & Unabsorbed Depreciation - 710.41
Provision for re-surfacing Cost 737.44 -
737.44 710.41
Deferred tax liability
Property, Plant and Equipment & Intangible Assets 861.43 1,002.57
861.43 1,002.57
Deferred Tax Assets (Liability) (123.99) " (292.16)

Note: - 15
Other Non current Liability
(INR in Lakhs)

Particiilass As at :;:;taMarch As at :;::lt?March

a) Fair valuation adjustment-Financial Liabilities
Overhead Cost Payable 150.66 177.64

Total 150.66 177.64

It represents unamortized portion of the difference between the fair value of financial Liabilities on
initial recognition and expenditure incurred.

Note: - 16
Provisions
(INR in Lakhs)
Particilars As at 31st March  As at 31st March
2018 2017
Provisions for Re-surfacing Cost 2,130.85 1,319.67
Total 2,130.85 1,319.67

In terms of Concession agreement, there is an obligation on the Company to keep the project assets
in working condition, including making replacement, as per laid down standards of MOR, of all project
assets whose codal life expire during the concession period. Accordingly, Company has made
estimated liability of Rs. 5,000 lakhs in respect of replacement obligations arising during the
remaining concession period as per requirement of Appendix A of the Ind AS 11. Based on said
estimated liability, provision for period ended of Rs. 675.45 lakhs (prevoius year ended 31st March
2017 Rs.623.96 Lakhs) has been made [Refer note no 25]. Interest cost of Rs. 135.72 lakhs for the
d 31st March 2018 (Previous year ended 31st March 2017 Rs. 71.75 ) have been charged

rofit and Loss [Refer note no 23]. /;)g
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Note: - 17

Financial Liability-Current
17.1 Trade Payables

(INR in Lakhs)

; As at 31st March  As at 31st March
Particulars 2018 2017
Overhead Cost Payable (SCR) [Refer Note 13.2] 49.15 55.11
O&M Expenses Payable (SCR) 166.80 256.81
Total 215.95 311.92

17.2 Other Financial Liability

Particulars

As at 31st March

As at 31st March

2018 2017

Audit Fees Payable 2.76 2.05
Rail Vikas Nigam Limited [Note 17.2.1] 76,361.34 26,736.66
Expenses Payable 51.94 94.37
‘Becurity Deposit 1.20
Term Loans

From Banks - Interest Payable on Loan

(Refer Note 13.1) - s
Total 76,428.06 26,866.87
Total Current Financial Liability 76,644.01 27,178.79

Note 17.2.1 Terms of Payment to RVNL

RVNL does not allow any credit period to company, In case of failure to make timely payment to
RVNL, then the Interest is payable at the SBI base rate plus one percent from the last date of the
month in which expenditure is incurred and charged up to the date of actual payment received from

company.

Note: - 18
Other Current Liability

(INR in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at 31st March
2018

As at 31st March
2017

Statutory liabilities
TDS payable
Service Tax Payable
Labour Cess

Total

325.08

0.10

174.75
0.02

325.18

- 17477
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Note 19 : Revenue from Operation

(INR in Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended March
March 31st, 2018 31st, 2017
Sale/Rendering of services 7,085.58 3,689.45
Other operating revenue
Construction contract revenue under SCA 59,933.61 48,946.93
Total 67,019.19 52,636.38

Note (i) : Operating Income:

a) After completion of the Phase-| of the project on 15th November 2008, same is being operated by South Central Railway
(SCR) and revenue is being collected by SCR which has been apportioned between the company and various Zonal Railways
from 15th November 2008 in terms of Operation and Maintenance Agreement dated 6th, January 2012 signed detailing the
modalities of revenue and cost sharing between the company and SCR. Phase 3 of the project is being operated from 2nd
March 2014.

Revenue is based on the Calculation sheets received from SCR showing Apportioned Revenue and O&M expenses on
Provisional basis. Also the Figures intimated by SCR are provisional and Subject to Confirmation. Hence any Impact arising out
of Confirmation of the Figures will be accounted for in the year in which it is finalized.

b) Krishnapatnam Railway Company Limited (KRCL) is anticipating earnings on Length of about 14.45 Km section from
Krishnapatnam Railway Station to the Buffer of Port from South Central Railway and O&M Cost. Hence, the revenue reported

is subject to the same.

c) Krishnapatnam Railway Company Limited (KRCL) is also anticipating earnings on account of apportioned Terminal Cost from
South Central Railway (SCR) for the period 15 November 2008 to 10th August 2017, pending due to railway board decision
which is not quantified yet. Hence, the revenue reported is subject to the same.

SCR has started apportionment of terminal cost from 11th August 2017 onwards.

d) Further all supporting evidences related to revenue bookings are being controlled and managed by SCR only and not made
available for verification

e) Also the Income pertaining to Phase-1 and Phase -3 can not be segregated due to non availability of any information from
SCR pertaining to same.

Note 20 : Other Income :
(INR in Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended March
5 March 31st, 2018 31st, 2017

Other Non Operating Income

Unwinding of discount on receivable from South Central Railways 153 64 131.41

under SCA

Income from reversal of deferred Overhead costs payable 26.98 26.98
Total 180.62 158.39

2 @0
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Note 21 : Operation & Maintenance Expense (O&M Expenses)

(INR in Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended March
March 31st, 2018 31st, 2017
Operation & Maintenance Expenses 1,672.83 1,535:58
Overhead Cost 340.24 27213
Construction Contract Cost under SCA 59,933.61 48,946.93
Total 61,946.68 50,754.64

Note (i) : Operation & Maintenance Expenses recognized in current year as intimated by South Central Railway are provisional
and subject to Confirmation. Hence, any impact arising on the confirmation of the figures will be accounted for in the year in
which it is finalized.

Note (ii) : South Central Railway has claimed service tax on the services related to operation and Maintenance and indirect
cost.

. Note {iii) : Also, the O&M expenses pertaining to Phase 1 and Phase 3 can not be segregated due to non availability of any
" information from SCR pertaining to same.

Note (iv) : Operation agreement pertaining to operation of phase 3 line is pending for finalization and signing.

Note (v) Operation & Maintenance expenses of Phase 1 and Phase 3 are being accounted for in terms of the Operations and
Maintenance Agreement signed with South Central Railway for 24.50 Km Railway line from Venkatachalam to Krishnapatnam
for Phase 1.

Note (vi) Operation & Maintenance expenses includes Lease Rent of Rs. 1 in accordance with terms of concession agreement.

Note (vii) All supporting evidences related to O & M expenses incurred have been controlled and managed by SCR only and
not made available for verification.

Note 22 : Employee Benefit Expenses

(INR in Lakhs)
Particuiare For the year ended For the year ended March
e March 31st, 2018 31st, 2017
Salary & Wages 31.53 20.53
Total 31.53 20.53
Note 23 : Finance Costs
(INR in Lakhs)
Particul For the year ended For the year ended March
e March 31st, 2018 31st, 2017
Interest cost:
Interest on Loan to bank 452.27 462.31
Other borrowing cost:
Unwinding of discount on Overhead costs payable 371 41.06
Unwinding of interest cost on Provision for Re-surfacing 13572 7175
(Refer note-16)
Interest on TDS 7.26 0
Total ™\ 632.36 575.12

0k - ”@7 S

(*uf

’)

T

050

TR wmmvnfmﬂwwmw%



RO < Sy 537 T s vl ME erib ooty gl g ot 0 Loleh ool ool bk

Note 24 : Depreciation and amortization

(INR in Lakhs)
Particulirs For the year ended For the year ended March
March 31st, 2018 31st, 2017
Depreciation on Property Plant and Equipment (Note 3) 36.04 39.56
Amortisation of Intangible Assets (Note 4) 668.42 663.03
Total 704.46 702.59
Note 25 : Other Expenses (INR in Lakhs)
) For the year ended For the year ended March
FAFULUINS March 31st, 2018 31st, 2017
(a) Legal & Professional Fees 21.20 23.51
(b) Travelling and Conveyance 11.92 11.26
(c) Payments to the Auditor as
(i) Auditor 3.96 1.56
_ (i) Taxation Matters 0.71 0.69
(iii) Reimbursement of expenses 0.24 0.08
(d) Telephone Charges 0.84 0.79
(e) Printing & Stationery 0.38 0.34
(f) Insurance Expenses 11.82 11.73
(g) Membership & Subscription Charges 3.54 3.45
(h) Repair & Maintenance 2.92 2.92
(i) Miscellaneous Expenses 1.15 2.96
(h) Medical expenses 0.24 0.70
(1) Business Promotion - 5.00
(j) Provisions for Re-surfacing Cost 675.45 623.96
Total 734.37 688.95
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Note: - 26
Income Tax Expense

Note 26.1 Income tax recognised in profit and loss

T A T T Y ST

INR in Lakhs

. As at 31st As at 31st
Fatiowars March 2018 March 2017

Current income tax:

Current income tax charge 731.47 65.01

Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous :

year 7.19

Deferred tax:

In respect of the current year (168.18) (20.47)
Total 570.48 44 .54
Note 26.2 Reconciliation between tax expense and the accounting profit :

P As at 31st As at 31st
March 2018 March 2017

Accounting profit before tax from continuing

operations 3,150.40 52.94

Accounting profit before income tax 3,150.40 52.94

At India’s statutory income tax rate of 21.3416% (31

March 2017: 20.3889%) g72.88 L

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in

Impact of IndAS transition Adjustment 57.57 54.21

Deferred Tax recognised (Reversed) (168.18) (20.47)

Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous 1

year .19

Expenses diasallowed as per income tax act, 1961 1,55 -
At the effective income tax rate of 18.11% (31

.48 44.54
March 2017: 84.13%) 104
lncqme tax expensg reported 't_n the statemgnt of 570.48 44 54
profit and loss (relating to continuing operations)
570.48 44.54
Note 26.3 : Movement in Deferred Tax Liability/(Assets)
Property, Plant and -
: ) — = Provision for .
Particulars Inta-nglhle T'ax Losses Resurfacing cost Total
Equipment
Opening balance as at 1 April 2017 1,002.57 -710.41 - 292.16
Charged/(credited) during the year 2017-18 = =
To Profitand Loss -141.14 710.41 -737.44 -168.18
To Other Comprehensive Income - -
Closing balance as at 31st March 2018 861.43 -737.44 123.99
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Note: - 27
Earnings per share (EPS)

Year ended

Particulars Yeareimiod Sist 31st March,

March, 2018 2017

(X per share) (T per share)
Basic EPS
From continuing operation 0.96 0.00
From discontinuing operation - -
Diluted EPS
From continuing operation 0.96 0.00

From discontinuing operation - =

27.1 Basic Earning per Share
The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in calculation of basic earning per
share:- )

(INR in Lakhs)

. ) Year ended
Particulars Yen:;:nhdz(ﬁ;st 31st March,
- o 2017
Profit attributable to equity holders of the company:
Continuing operations 2:979.:92 8.40
Discontinuing operations = -
Earnings used in calculation of Basic Earning Per Share 2,579.92 8.40
Weighted average number of shares for the purpose of basic 2 700 2 700

earnings per share

27.2 Diluted Earning per Share

The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in calculation of diluted earning
per share:-

(INR in Lakhs)

Year ended
Particulars Yoar shdad 315t 31st March,
March, 2018 2017

Profit attributable to equity holders of the company:

Continuing operations 2,579.92 8.40
Discontinuing operations E =

Earqlngs used in F:alculahon of diluted Earning Per Share from 2.579.92 8.40
continuing operations

The weighted number of equity shares for the purpose of diluted earning per share reconciles to the
weighted average number of equity shares used in calculation of basic earning per share as follows:

(INRin Lakhs)

Year ended
Particulars Taareided 316} 31st March,
March, 2018
2017
We|_ghted average number of Equity shares used in calculation of 2 700 2.700
basic earnings per share
verage number of Equity shares used in galculation of 2 700 2,700
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KRISHNAPATNAM RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED

Note: 28 Service Concession arrangements

Public-to-private service concession arrangements are recorded according to Appendix "A" Service Concession
Arrangements” IND-AS-11.Appendix "A" Service Concession Arrangements applies if:

a) The Grantor controls or regulates which services the operator should provide with the infrastructure, to whom it
must provide them, and at what price; and '

b)  The grantor controls-through ownership, beneficial entitlement, or otherwise- any significant residual interest in the
infrastructure at the end of the term of the arrangement.

If both of the above conditions are met simultaneously, an intangible asset is recognized to the extent that the operator
receives the right to charge users of the public service, provided that these charges are conditional on the degree to
which the service is used.

These intangible assets are initially recognized at cost, which is understood as the fair value of the service provided plus
other direct costs directly attributable to the operation. They are then amortized over the term of the concession.

The KRCL(Company) has entered into a Concession Agreement with Ministry of Railways (MoR), Government of India
dated 23rd November, 2007 in terms of which the Ministry of Railways (Grantor) has authorized the Company (Operator)
.to develop, finance, design, engineer, procure, construct, operate and maintain the Project Railway and to exercise and/or
enjoy the rights, powers, benefits, privileges authorizations and entitlements upon its completion. In terms of the said
agreement KRCL has an obligation to complete construction of the project railway and to keep the project assets in
proper working condition including all projects assets whose lives have expired.

The concession period is determined with reference to attainment of NPV payback benchmark at the rate of return of
14%.The concession period shall be 30 years of operation or till the NPV payback equal to equity investment is reached,
whichever is earlier. In case the NPV payback is reached earlier than 30 years, the concession agreement would stand
terminated and the project line would be re-possessed by railway.

At the end of concession period, the project assets shall be hand over by KRCL to MOR and KRCL shall be entitled to
receive and MOR shall pay to KRCL an amount equal to the value of new assets and additional facilities created by the
KRCL net of depreciation and amortisation. The original existing assets leased to KRCL by MOR shall revert back to
MOR. The fresh land acquired by MOR and leased to KRCL shall also revert back to MOR on payment of an amount
equal to the cost of acquisition.

In terms of the above agreement upon expiry of 30 years of operation the concession period shall be extended by an
equal period of time which corresponds to the period for which material disruption of operation and maintenance occurred
during the concession period. However such extension will be limited to provision that if NPV payback equal to equity
investment is reached earlier then the period so extended , the concession period would stand terminated.

In case of material breach in terms of the agreement the MOR and KRCL both have the right to terminate the agreement
if they are not able to cure the event of default in accordance with such agreement.

The Operation and Maintenance of the project railway is being conducted by MOR through South Central Railway (SCR)
under its right, vide agreement dated 6th January, 2012 which is co-terminus with the Concessign Agreement, entered
into between the MoR and KRCL. Further, in terms of this agreement, SCR is to operate traffic (Passenger & Freig!:t),
collect revenue, maintain the facility and is required to pass-on the apportioned revenue and operation & Maintenance
cost to Krishnapatnam Railway Company Limited (KRCL).

The above project is covered in three phase :

Phase-1 of the Project involving the laying of railway line of 24.5 Km from Krishnapatnam to Venktachalam (as per
concession agreement signed on 06-01-2012) has been completed and commercial traffic is being operated on the same
w.e.f from November 15th, 2008.

Phase-2 of the project is under construction and expenditure incurred on same is appearing as intangibles under
development.

Phase-3 of the Project involving the doubling of the track laid down in phase 1 has been completed and commercial traffic
is being operated on the same w.e.f. from 2nd March 2014.
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For the year ended 31st March 2018, the company has recognized revenue of Rs. 67019.19 Lakhs (for the year ended
31st March 2017: Rs. 52,636.38 Lakhs), consisting of Rs. 59933.61 Lakhs (for the year ended : 31st March 2017:
48,946.93 Lakhs) on construction of intangible assets under service concession arrangement and Rs.7085.58 Lakhs (for
the year ended 31st March 2017: Rs. 3,689.45 Lakhs) towards sharing of apportioned earning from operation of railway
line under service concession arrangement. Company has recognized profit of Rs. 3150.40 Lakhs for the year ended
31st March 2018 (for the year ended 31st March 2017: 52.94 Lakhs) , consisting of a nil profit on construction of
intangible assets under service concession arrangement and a profit of Rs.3150.40 Lakhs for the year ended 31st March
2018 (for the year ended 31st March 2017: Rs. 52.94 Lakhs) towards sharing of apportioned earning from operation of
railway line under service concession arrangement. The revenue recognized in relation to construction of intangihle
assets under service concession arrangement in F.Y.2017-18 represents the fair value of services provided towards
construction of intangible assets under service concession arrangement. The company has recognized receivable under
service concession arrangement measured at the fair value at 31st March 2018 of Rs. 1493.71 Lakhs (at 31st March
2017 : Rs. 1,340.07 Lakhs) , representing the present value of fresh land acquired by MOR and leased to KRCL which is
recoverable at the end of concession period from MOR of which Rs.400.65 Lakhs (at 31st March 2017: Rs.247.01 Lakhs)
represents accrued interest as at 31st March 2018. The company has recognized an intangible asset of Rs. 3.12 Lakhs
(31st March 2017: Rs.120.06 Lakhs), of which Rs. 0.12 Lakhs (31st March 2017 :Rs. 2.76 Lakhs) has been amortized
_during the year ended 31st March 2018. The intangible asset represents the freight sharing rights to receive freight traffic
earnings under service concession agreement.

Notes :29 Capital management

The company objective to manage its capital in a manner to ensure and safeguard their ability to continue as a going
concern so that company can continue to provide maximum returns to share holders and benefit to other stake holders.

Further, company manages its capital structure to make adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the
requirements of the financial covenants. The company maintain an optimal capital structure of Debt equity to reduce the
cost of capital. The company debts includes long term debt , interest bearing loans and borrowings from banks.

Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Borrowing (Note No. 13.1) 92,996.88 85,054.76
Net debt 92,996.88 85,054.76
Equity (Note No. 11) 27,000.00 27,000.00
Other equity (Note No. 12) 452.19 (2,127.73)
Total equity 27,452.19 24,872.27

Net Debt to equity ratio 773 2.3 Llr2.3

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March

2018.
Note: Total long term debt sanctioned by bank is Rs. 933 /- Crores , out of which Rs. 929.96/- Crores has been disbursed

by the lender up to 31th March 2018.
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Note 30 :Fair Value measurements
(i) Financial Instruments by Category

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Particul ——]
SRS FVTPL | FVTOCI | Amortised Cost | FVTPL FVTOCI A"‘é’:s'f‘*d
Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables - - 2,018.50 e = 523.33
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents - - 633.69 - = 468.39
(iii) Receivable from railways under SCA = = 1,493.71 = = 1,340.07
(iv) Other Receivable 2 E 16.41 = = 64.80
Total Financial Assets - - 4,162.31 - - 2,396.59
|
Financial Liabilities -
(i) Borrowings 5 - 92,996.88 - . 85,054.76
(i) Trade Payables
Over Head Cost Payables - - 321.09 = G 339.u9
. Other Trade Payables = - 166.80 = . 256.81
(iii) Capital Creditors - = 76,361.34 = = 26,736.66
iv) Other payables 5 - 66.72 = = 130.21
Total Financial Liabilities - - 1,69,912.83 % . 1,12,517.53 |
(ii) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are measured at amortised cost:-
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Particulars i
Carrying Value v:ﬁ:: Carrying Value  Fair value
Financial Assets
Receivable from railways under SCA 1,493.71 1,812.81 1,340.07 1,540.20
Total Financial Assets 1,493.71 1,812.81 1,340.07 1,540.60
Financial Liabilities
Over Head Cost Payables 321.09 310.86 339.09 346.57
Total Financial Liabilities 321.09 310.86 339.09 346.57

i) The fare value of trade receivables, other trade payables, capital creditors, cash and cash equivalents and other short
term trade receivables and payables are considered to the same as their carrying values, due to short term nature.

i) Long term variable rate borrowings are evaluated by company on parameters such as interest rates, specific country
risk factors and other risk factors. Based on this evaluation the fair value of such payables are not materially different
from their carrying amount.

iii) The fair value of receivables from railways under service concession arrangement and overhead cost payables were

calculated based on cash flows discounted using current lending rate. They are classified as level 3 fair values in fair
value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs including couptayparty credit risk.
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Fair Value hierarchy as on 31-03-2018 (INR in Lakhs)
Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level3 Total

Financial Assets
Financial assets at Amortised Cost
Receivable from railways under SCA - - 1,812.81 1,812.81
- - 1,812.81 1,812.81

Fair Value hierarchy as on 31-03-2018
(INR in Lakhs)
Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Toial

Financial Liabilities

Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost

Over Head Cost Payable - - 310.86 310.86
. - - 310.86 310.86

Fair Value hierarchy as on 31-3-2017
(INR in Lakhs)

Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Assets
Financial assets at Amortised Cost

Receivable from railways under SCA - - 1,540.60 1,540.60
- - 1,540.60 1,540.60

Fair Value hierarchy as on 31-3-2017
(INR in Lakhs)

Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Liabilities

Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost

Over Head Cost Payable - - -346.57 346.57
- - 346.57 346.07

(iii) Financial risk management

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise Bank Borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of
these financial liabilities is to finance the company’s operations and to provide guarantees to support its operation. The
Company’s principal financial assets include trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents that derive
directly from its operations.

The Company is expose to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The company financial risk activities are governed by
appropriated policies and procedures and that financial risk are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the
companies policies and risk objectives. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risk, which are summarised below:-

a) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market risk comprises Interest rate risk. Financial insttuments affected by market risk includes loans and

borrowing, deposits and other non derivative financial instruments. a@/ =
el = T
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b) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instruments will fluctuate because of
change in market interest rate. The company exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rate relates primarily to
the company long term debt obligations with floating interest rate. The company manages its interest risk in accordance
with the companies policies and risk objective.

c) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet
its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers. The company is
exposed to credit risk from its financial activities including deposits with banks, financial institutions and other financial

instruments.
Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed in accordance with the companies policy.
Investment of surplus are made only with approved counterparty on the basis of the financial quotes received from the
counterparty.

d) Liquidity risk

" Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rest with the board of directors the company manages maintaining
adequate banking facilities and reserves borrowing facilities by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows
and by matching the maturities of financial liabilities

Note : 31 Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future, and the key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities with next financial year.

a) Useful lives of Intangibles

As described in note 2 (g), company has estimated the useful live of intangible assets (Intangible under service
concession arrangement) is 30 years for amortisation of intangible assets, As per service concession arrangement if
NPV payback equal to equity investment @14% is reached earlier than 30 years, the concession agreement would stand
terminated and the project line would be repossessed by railway.

The financial impact of the above assessment may impact the amortisation expenses in subsequent financial years.

b) Fair valuation measurement and valuation process

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities is measured using the valuation techniques including the DCF
model. The inputs to these method are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a
degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity
risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial
instruments. See Note 30 for further disclosures.

c) Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses and unabsorbed depreciation to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which losses can be utilized significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax asset that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profit together with future tax planning strategies.

The company has carried forward unabsorbed depreciation of Rs. NIL (31st March 2017: Rs.1,486.41 lakhs)

Note :32 Application of IndAS on material items
The Prior Period Items and changes in accounting polcies are applied retrospectively on account of materiality only in
line with the provisions of Indian Accoutning Standards.
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Note : 33 Construction Contracts
In terms of the disclosure required in Ind-AS 11Construction Contracts as notified in the companies (Accounting standard)

rules 2015, the amount considered in the financial statements up to the balance sheet date are as follows:-

(INR in Lakhs)

; During the
During the year ded
Particulars ended 31st i e
March 2018 31st March
2017
Contract revenue recognised 59,933.61 48,946.93

Aggregate amount of costs incurred

and recognized in profit/Loss 59’.9 33.61 48,346.93

Note : 34 Contractual Commitments
The amount of contractual commitments in relation to project assets recognised as intangible assets.

INR in Lakhs
, 2 % As at 31 March As at 31
varioniars 2018 March 2017

Capital commitment for project related assets is estimated at Rs., 18.36 Crores
(2060.42 Cr being total revised estimated project cost less Rs.2042.42 Cr being
amount of expense incurred till 31-03-2018)
1,836.59 38,466.00
(Rs. 1866 crores being the total estimated project cost less Rs 1481.34 crores being
amount of expenses incurred till 31-03-2017)

Total 17836.59 38,466.00

Note : 35 Operating Lease arrangements

South Central railway (lessor) has leased all the existing assets as per concession agreement and any land to be newly
acquired for the project to company (Lessee) for the duration of Concession Agreement i.e., 30 years or on to attainment
of the Net Present Value (NPV) payback equal to equity investment @14% whichever is earlier.

Company shall pay to the lessor, an annual lease rentals @< 1/- per annum in respect of the new land acquired by South

Central Railway and for original land leased to the company as per the extant policy MOR as revised from time to time.
This lease rental shall be payable in advance in one single instalment payable in first week of January.

During the year ended March 2018 , Rs. 1/- have been recognised as lease expense.

g 6
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Note 36 : Related Party Disclosures

36.1 Related Parties

A- Related Parties held equity of company

-

As at 31 March, 2018 As at 31 March, 2017
N Relati i
EE HHaNomIp Number of % holding in that | Number of shares |% holding in that
shares held class of shares held class of shares
Parties to joint
Rail Vikas Nigam Limited venture 8,10,00,000.00 30.00% 8,10,00,000.00 30.00%
agreement
; Parties to joint
E”l_:i't’::pat"am PotCompany’ | sanmie 8,10,00,000.00 30.00%|  8,10,00,000.00 30.00%
agreement
Parties to joint
Govt. of Andhra Pradesh venture 3,50,00,000.00 12.96% 3,50,00,000.00 12.96%
agreement
. - Parties to joint
National Mineral Development -
Corporation Limited venture 4,00,00,000.00 14.82% 4,00,00,000.00 14.82%
i . agreement
: k Parties to joint
Bramhani Industries Limited venture 3,30,00,000.00 12.22% 3,30,00,000.00 12.22%
agreement
36.2 Key Managerial personnel of the entity
Name Position
Trivedi Babu Venkata Nidubrolu, :
; Director
up to July'17
Ramakishan Tanugula Director
Anil Kumar Yendluri Acting Managing Director
Venkateswar Akella, upto July '17 |Director
Monica Agnihotri, upto Nov'17 Director
Subbarao Sabbineni Director
Pradeep Gaur, upto June'18 Director
Vinod Kumar Aggarwal Director
Koya praveen Director
Rahul Panday , upto August'17 Director
Shilpi Aggarwal Director
Trilok Garg Cs
Shanti Nath Banerjea CEO
Muni Prasad Tripurasetty CFO -~
36.3 Disclosure of transaction with related parties:
(i) Joint Venture: (Amount in Lakhs)
Transactions ) Outstanding f\mount Payable/
Particulars (Receivable) )
Year ended 31 Year ended 31 As at 31 March  As at 31 March
March 2018 March 2017 2018 2017
RVNL Unsecured
Expgpdltgre towards project (Net of interest on 48,492.98 41,810.20 76.596.30 26,743.71
mobilisation advance & sale of tender).
Interest Charged by RVNL 2,414.55 4,219.29 - =
Travelling and Other expenses - 5.12 v - -
Advance for project expenditure paid 234.96 (2,573.35) (234.96) (397.28)
Advance for project expenditure adjusted 1397.28)
KPCL -
Expenditure towards construction of crew running : N ) 8128
room (; ) ; Y i
L Nyl 0@\/’
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Sub-contract work have been given to RVNL which has been made at the price prevalent in market.

The amount outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party
receivable or payable.

(ii) Compensation of key management personnel:

The remuneration of directors and other key management personnel during the year was as follows:

Year ended-31 Year ended 31

Particulars March 2018 March 2017
Short-term benefits 31.53 20.53

31.53 20.53
Note 37 :

On the basis of legal opinion taken by the company, management is of the view that the provisions of VAT pertaining to Works
Contract Tax (WCT) including TDS on WCT provisions are not applicable in respect of the construction work being carried out in the
state of Andhra Pradesh by Rail Vikas Nigam Limited on behalf of the company as the KRCL is not transferring the Assets created
by way of this contract to any other person and as such KRCL who is the contractee need not be a registered dealer.

Note 38 :
The confirmations from South Central Railway for Apportioned Revenue, O&M expenses, balance and statement of account with
the company are yet to be received.

Note 39 :
There are no reported Micro, Small and Medium enterprises as defined in the “The Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises
Development Act 2006" to whom the company owes any dues. -

Note 40: Contingent liability

a) During the financial year 2014-15 a show cause notice was received from office of Director General of Central Excise
Intelligence, Chennai Unit in respect of alleged offence of evasion of Service Tax amounting to Rs. 13.42 Crore plus interest and
penalty thereon. The Company has not accepted the liability as Commissioner of Service Tax has given relief to KRCL vide order
dated 25.01.2016 for the earlier period upto 31st March 2014. However, the department has filed appeal with CESTAT against the
order of Commissioner. In addition to notice for liability upto 31st March 2014, department has also raised demand of Rs. 7.58 crore
and 2.86 crore for financial year 2014-15 and 2015-16 respectively on the same matter as explained above. Company has not
accepted the liability and has submitted its reply to department. Since the Company had received favourable ruling from
Commissioner Service Tax. it is confident that no additional liability will devolve on it.

b) During the previous year, company has received certain bills under protest from contractor pertaining to phase 1 on which a
future liability may arise. Financial impact of the same is not ascertainable at present.

c) Contingent liability in respect of claims not acknowledged as debt by the company is Rs.3.72 Crores (Previous year Rs. 3.72
Crore) in respect of Income Tax Assessment Case for A'Y 2011-12 pending in ITAT by the Income Tax Department.

Note 41 : Impairment of Assets
On the basis of review, the management is of the opinion that the economic performance of non financial agsets of the Company is
not lower than expected and therefore there is no impairment of any assets as on the Balance Sheet date.

Note 42: Approval of financial statement

The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 20/07/2018
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STATUTORY AUDIT REPORT




Satyendra Jain & Associates
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To

The Members of KRISHNAPATNAM RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED

D-1, Second Floor,
DEFENCE COLONY,
NEW DELHI-110024, INDIA
Tel.: 011-24652207
011-24652208
Fax : Extension - 112
e-mail : mail@sija.in
Web : www.sja.in

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompauying Ind AS financial stalements of
KRISHNAPATNAM RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED, (“the Company”), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 315t March, 2018, and the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ending on that date and a sumnary of

_ the significant accounting policies and oiher explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for ti:e Finuncial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of
these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in acccrdance with the Accounting principles
generally accepted in India including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under Section 133 of the Act, reed with relevant rules issued therecunder.
This responsibility also includes the mainierance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provision of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting the frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial control, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accou ting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the financial siater 2nts that give a true and fair view an ' are
free from material misstatement, whether due {o fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an oninion on these fizancial staterm2uts hased on
our audit. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accountin, and
auditing standards and matters whicl. are required to be included in the audit report
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made taereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordznce with the Standards on Auditing specified
under section 143{10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the Ind AS financial staterents are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected




el e e Sl r'rx:wyu!

depend on the Auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control
relevant to the Company’s preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that give
true and fair view, in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by
Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

i) Reference is drawn to Note No. 19(i) regarding Accounting of Revenue and Note
No. 21(i) regarding accounting for of Operation & Maintenance (O&M) expenses
by the company on the basis of provisional advices/calculation sheets provided
by South Central Railway (SCR) and not making available the detailed
substantiating collateral records and procedures for verification of the same.
Further, in view of non-receipt of the confirmation from South Central Railways
regarding provisional apportionment of revenue, O&M expenses, service tax/GST
claims, overhead expenses and the outstanding balances could vary.

Management confirms that the whole of the Revenue and O&M expenses are
booked on the basis of figures informed by the SCR which are provisional (pl
refer Note 19 and 21) and liable to change, as explained to us, no confirmation
has been received from SCR since beginning of the project. Thus it is affirmed
that financial statements are provisional in this respect.

ii) Reference is drawn regarding Non-Provision of Departmental charges amounting

to Rs.87.43 crores (approximately), payable to Rail Vikas Nigam Limited @ 5%
of the total cost of works as per detailed estimate/ revised estimate/ completion
estimate in the books of accounts of the Company. In view of non-provision, the
impact of same on the financial statements could not be ascertained.

iii)  Reference is drawn to Note No. 8.1.1, 13.2 and 17.1 regarding outstanding Trade
Receivables and Trade Payables balances of SCR are subject to confirmation.
Apart from that, Debit/credit balances of various clients, associates, suppliers
and others are subject to confirmation and reconciliation,

iv)  In order to verify the balances of bank loan accounts, we have been provided
the bank statements received by the company through email only except for Bank
of India for which online verification by net banking is available. The impact of

the same on the financial statement could not be determined.




Qualified Opinion

Subject to the matters enumerated above under the ‘Basis of Qualified Opinion’
paragraph, the impact of those above not provided by the company, in our opinion
and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31t March
2018, its financial performance including other Comprehensive Income, its cash
flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matter

i)

i)

Without qualifying our opinion, attention is drawn towards Note No. 5.2 as such the
amount of interest Rs 2414.55 lacs (31.03.2017 Rs. 4219.29 Jacs) being payable to
RVNL on its outstanding balance is as calculated by them and accepted as debited by
RVNL. As per terms of construction agreement RVNL should charge Interest @ PLR
however RVNL was charging interest @ SBI Base Rate Plus 1%.The concept of PLR
has ended earlier than signing of the “Construction Agreement”. Thus rate of interest
as per agreement is bad ab initio. However vide item No. 19 of 45" meeting of the
company BOD dated 28.11.2017, the base rate +1% has been ratified with a rider to
request the RVNL to modify the relevant clause of the “Construction Agreement”.
However the same is yet to be modified.

Without qualifying our opinion, attention is drawn towards Note No. 19(1) for non-
recognition of revenue on account of apportioned terminal cost for the period from 15th
November 2008 to 10th August 2017 due to pending decision of Railway Board and
earnings on length of about 14.45 Km section from Krishnapatnam Railway station to
the Buffer of port. Efforts are required to finalize the same at the earliest.

a) The contractor (RVNL) is charging Directional & General Charges (D&G Charges)
from the company on the various categories of work executed by it. However, no
interest has been charged by the RVNL on D&G charges for the current and previous
years’ works executed and the same has also not been provided for by the company in
its books of accounts.

b) Without qualifying our opinion, attention is drawn towards Note No. 5.4, Clause 10.2
of the Construction Agreement provides “D&G charges shall be payable to RVNL @
9.13% for civil work, 10.18% for electrical works and 10.69% for S&T work. However,
the above percentage shall be calculated finally based on the actual completion cost.”
Thus D&G charges being capitalized and amortization/depreciation being charged
thereon is subject to change based on the outcome of final actual completion cost.




v)

Vi)

vii)

Without qualifying our opinion, attention is drawn towards Note No. 21(ii) as such South
Central Railway has claimed service Tax/GST on the services related to operation and
maintenance and indirect cost.

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note No. 21(iv) and as such
Operation Agreement is yet to be entered into with SCR pertaining to operation of
Phase — lll which is functional since 2™ March’ 2014. Thus accounting for of revenue
and operation cost of Phase — Il between KRCL and SCR is being made on the basis
of Operation and Maintenance Agreement for Phase — . If the terms of agreement
change, the related revenue and operation cost will vary.

As per Operation & Maintenance agreement of Phase — | line, the agreement is to be
reviewed every six months but the same was reviewed last in October’ 2012.

Reference is drawn regarding charging by contractor (RVNL), Directional & General
Charges (D&G Charges) from the company on maintenance service on railway line
being provided by outside third party without any contractual terms. RVNL has no role
in this work.

Company is not empowered in construction agreement to pay D&G charge on
Maintenance work to any person. Company has paid the same to RVNL. Now the
company has made a provision amounting to Rs. 6,17,971.00 for its recovery under the
head “Receivable from RVNL".

Unauthoritatively RVNL has levied D G Charges amounting to Rs 7,42,114/-on
construction value of Rs. 81,28,299/- of 30 Bedded Crew Running Room. The order
was placed to KPCL for construction of crew running room, KPCL made construction.
The documents produced before us in this respect do not have any terms authorizing
the payment of D & G charges to anyone.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

L

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2017 (“the Order”)
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of
section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure I a statement on the matters
Specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by the directions issued by Comptroller and Auditor General of
India, in terms of Section 143 (5) of the Act, on the basis of such checks of the
books and records of the Company as we considered appropriate and
according to the information and explanations given to us, we hereby enclose
the compliance in Annexure II.

As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit. .

b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept
by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.
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¢) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the
Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder.

e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors, taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31st March, 2018, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section
164(2) of the Act.

f) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate report in “Annexure III”; and

With respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,

% in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i) The pending litigations have been enumerated in “Notes on Accounts”
under “Contingent Liabilities, impact of the same on financial position has
been given there.

ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii) There were no amounts which required to be transferred by the Company to
the Investor Education and Protection Fund.

For Satyendra Jain & Associates

Chartered Accountants
FRN: 012018N

A
il Jax
Partner

M. No.072783

Date: 20.07.2018
Place : New Delhi
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The Annexure I referred to in the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to
the members of KRISHNAPATNAM RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED, on the
financial statements for the year ended on 315t March, 2018.

(i) In Respect of Fixed Assets-

(@) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets relating to phase I
and phase III projects and not for phase II project.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has a
regular program of physical verification of its fixed assets by which fixed
assets are verified in a phased manner over a period of two years. In our
opinion, the periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to
the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. In accordance with this
program, fixed assets were verified during the year and no significant
discrepancy was found.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable
properties (Building) are held in the name of the Company, for leasehold land
title deeds are held in the name of South Central Railway and leasehold rights
are in the name of company as per Lease deed appended in concession
agreement.

(i) The Company does not have any inventories; accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3 (ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(iiiy The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies,
firms or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the
Companies Act, 2013 accordingly sub clauses (a), (b) & (c) of paragraph 3 (iii) are not
applicable.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not given any Loans and Guarantees and not made any Investments
in securities where the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act apply.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits, where the directives issued by the
Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Section 73 to 76 and the rules framed
thereunder apply. It has been explained that no order has been passed by the
Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India
or any Court or any other Tribunal.

(vi) To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not
specified maintenance of cost records under sub section (1) of section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013 for the operations of the Company.

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/accrued in the
books of accounts in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Provident
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Service tax, Sales tax, GST, Wealth
tax, Customs duty and other material statutory dues have been generally regularly
deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities. As
explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Sales-tax, Wealth tax, duty of Customs, duty of Excise,
value added tax and cess. According to the information and explanations given to




us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, GST, Duty of Customs,
Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other statutory dues were in arrears, as
March 31, 2018 for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xif)

(xiii)

(xii)

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the following Service
tax, sales tax and Income-tax dues have not been deposited with the appropriate
authorities on account of dispute:

Nature of|From where[Period to/Amount
Dues dispute isiwhich the involved (R

Name of pending amount pertains

Statute

The Incomellncome Tax [ITAT ALY, 2011-12 372 Cr.

Tax Act’ 1961

Finance Act|Service Tax |[CESTAT F.Y. 2011-12 to 13.42 Cr.

. [1994 (CBEC) F.Y. 2013-14
Finance Act'|Service Tax [Principal F.Y. 2014-15 7.58 Cr.
1994 (CBEC) commissioner of]
Service Tax
Finance Act'Service Tax |Principal F.Y. 2015-16 2.86 Cr.
1994 (CBEC) commissioner of]
Service Tax
(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us

company has generally complied with conditions of loan agreements. However,
repayment of principal has not yet become due.

The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments). However the company has raised term
loans during the period and the same has been applied for long term purposes.

According to the information and explanations given to us, company is not aware
of any significant facts relating to fraud or suspected fraud known that may have
involved its officers/consultants/employees during the year.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has paid/provided for
managerial remuneration within the limits prescribed in accordance with the
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule
V to the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties
are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and
details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
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examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or issued fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

(xv)  The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act 1934.

For Satyendra Jain & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 012018N

Partner
M. No.072783

Date: 20.07.2018
Place: New Delhi
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Annexure II of the Independent Auditors’ Report

(xiii) Annexure to the Independent Auditor’s Report referred in our report of even
date on the financial statements of KRISHNAPATNAM RAILWAY
COMPANY LIMITED for the year.

CAG’s Direction

Our Report thereon

Whether The company has clear
title/lease deeds for freehold and
leasehold land respectively. If not
please state the area of freehold and
leasehold land for which title/lease
deeds are not available.

Company has title deed for
land/building procured from NBCC
and lease deed of land for railway
lines from South Central Railway.

Please report whether there are any
cases of waiver/write off of
debts/loans/interest etc., if any, the
reasons there for and the amount
involved.

As per record and information and
explanations provided to us, there are
no cases of waiver/write off of
debts/loans/interest etc.

Whether  proper  records  are
maintained for inventories lying with
third parties & assets received as
gifts/grants from Govt. or other
authorities.

As per record, information and
explanations provided to us, no
inventory is lying with third parties
and no asset has been received as gifts
from Government or any other
authorities by KRCL.

For Satyendra Jain & Associates
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 012018N

M. No.072783

Date: 20.07.2018
Place: New Delhi
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Annexure III of the Independent Auditors’ Report

Annexure to the Independent Auditor’s Report referred in our report of even date on
the financial statements of KRISHNAPATNAM RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED
for the year.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/S
Krishnapatnam Railway Company Limited (“the Company”) as of 31st March 2018 in
conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for
the year ended 315t March, 2018.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

_ The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting
Criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
('ICAT). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,
2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial
controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued
by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
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the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls
system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that-

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

= (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to

permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March
2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

The operation of the company’s business are solely controlled by South Central
Railway (SCR), documentation is maintained by SCR and are not shared with




the company (KRCL) and also the revenue recognition and booking of O&M
expenses are solely and purely dependent on the intimations of figures without
supporting documents from SCR.

However internal control requires improvements in following areas:

i) No control over revenue apportionment by South Central Railway (SCR) as
revenue sheets are sent by SCR to KRCL only on provisional basis and,
collateral records neither supplied by SCR nor maintained by the company
and as such there is no basis to verify the same.

ii) No control over Operational & Maintenance expenses, overhead charges, GST
and other expenses which are charged by SCR as there are no basis to verify
the same.

iii) No control over D & G Charges being levied by the RVNL over maintenance
expenses charged by outside agency for maintenance of III phase line and on
Crew Running Room constructed by KPCL.

iv) As informed to us, management is not having any methodology to identify,
ensure and provide for the bills pertaining to current and previous years in

respect of the railway line construction project not received from the
contractor so far.

For Satyendra Jain & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 012018N

( 1
Partner
M. No.072783

Date: 20.07.2018
Place : New Delhi
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KRISHNAPATNAM RAILWAY COMPANY LIMITED

Regd. office: Amsri Faust Complex, Door No 9-1-164/A-166, 5" Floor, Sarojini Devi Road,
Secunderabad- 500003, Telangana, CIN NO. U45200TG2006PLC051378

S1. No

Auditor’s Comments for Financial Year

2017-18

Management Reply

Basis for Qualified Opinion:

Reference is drawn to Note No. 19(i) regarding
Accounting of Revenue and Note No. 21(i)
regarding accounting for of Operation &
Maintenance (O&M) expenses by the company
on the basis of provisional advices/calculation
sheets provided by South Central Railway
(SCR) and not making available the detailed
substantiating collateral records and procedures
for verification of the same.

Further, in view of non-receipt of the
confirmation from South Central Railways
regarding  provisional apportionment  of
revenue, O&M expenses, service tax/GST
claims, overhead expenses and the outstanding
balance could vary.

However in response to our Management
Letter, company replied that company is
making follow up with SCR and in some cases
resolution has been achieved while other
disputes are in process of resolution. But during
audit we have not been provided with the
details of disputes under process and disputes
resolved how and what resolution made.

Management confirms that the whole of the
Revenue and O&M expenses relating to Ph-1
are booked on the basis of figures informed by
the SCR which are provisional (pl refer Note
19 and 21) and liable to change, as explained to
us, no confirmation has been received from
SCR since beginning of the project. Thus it is
affirmed  that financial statements are
provisional in this respect. '

Company depends on South Central
Railway (SCR) for information relating
to freight revenue and Operation &
Maintenance Cost as per the general
practice of Indian Railways.

SCR submits KRCL., a Summary of
monthly apportioned Revenue, which is
prepared on the basis of RRs, this
statement is checked with records of
KRCL by the Officers of KRCL stationed
at Secundarabad in order to arrive at
correct Revenue amount of a particular
month. Similar exercise is done in respect
of O & M Costs per month.

It is reiterated that as-per the General
Railway Practice either the apportioned
revenue or O&M amount are treated as
‘Provisional’. These figures are liable to
change due to various adjustments are
made in a future date by the Railway on
account of inclusion/exclusion of RRs,
incorrect computation of Wagon/motive
power hours etc. ,or due to other reasons.
However the effect of such changes are
duly accounted for in the month the same
takes place, in the books of the Company.

2

Reference is drawn regarding Non-Provision of
Departmental charges amounting to Rs.87.43
Crores (approximately), payable to Rail Vikas
Nigam Limited @ 5% of the total cost of works

Company has not received any claim
from Rail Vikas Nigam Limited (RVNL)
on account of ‘Departmental charges’.
On receipt of claim for Departmental[

Corporate office: Room No. 272, 1% Floor, August Kranti Bhawan, Bhikaji Cama Place, New Delhi-110066

Ph. No. 01 1-2673:@/j,&1x. No. 011-26182957
f/,,\)\\% 078
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as per detailed estimate/ revised estimate/
completion estimate in the books of accounts of
the Company. In view of non-provision, the
impact of same on the financial statements
could not be ascertained.

Charges from RVNL, KRCL will take
decision to provide the same in the
financial statements of respective year.

Reference is drawn to Note No. 8.1.1, 13.2 and
17.1 regarding outstanding Trade Receivables
and Trade Payables balances of SCR are subject
to confirmation. Apart from that Debit/credit
balances of various clients, associates, suppliers
and others are subject to confirmation and
reconciliation.

KRCL has sent balance confirmation
letters to SCR and is making efforts to
get the confirmation from S C Railway.

In order to verify the balances of bank loan
accounts, we have been provided the bank
statements received by the company through
email only except for Bank of India for which
online verification by net banking is available.
The impact of the same on the financial
statement could not be determined.

The Bank statements received from the
Banks, showing outstanding balance as
on 31.12.2017 has been provided to the
Auditor. It is understood that the
statements sent by the Banks (through e-
mail) will reflect the balance outstanding
as per their records. Hence, this suffices
the necessity.

. No

Auditor’s Comments for the Financial Year
2017-18

Management Reply

Emphasis of Matter:

Without qualifying our opinion, attention is drawn
towards Note No. 5.2 as such the amount of interest
Rs2414.55lacs (31.03.2017 Rs. 4219.29lacs) being
payable to RVNL on its outstanding balance is as
calculated by them and accepted as debited by
RVNL.As per terms of construction agreement
RVNL should charge Interest @ PLR however
RVNL was charging interest @ SBI Base Rate Plus
1%.The concept of PLR has ended earlier than
signing of the “Construction Agreement”. Thus rate
of interest as per agreement is bad ab initio.
However vide item No. 19 of 45" meeting of the
company BOD dated 28.11.2017, the base rate +1%
has been ratified with a rider to request the RVNL

to modify the relevant clause of the “Construction

BoD of the Company has ratified
charging of SBI Base rate plus 1% as
interest in place of RBI PLR, as
mentioned in Construction Agreement.
Company has requested RVNL to modify
the relevant clause of Construction
Agreement accordingly.

On this issue, KRCL proposed necessary
amendment in Construction Agreement
to RVNL, which is under Approval stage.
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Agreement”. However the same is yet to be

modified.

o

Without qualifying our opinion, attention is
drawn towards Note No. 19(1) for non-
recognition of revenue on account of
apportioned terminal cost for the period from
15th November 2008 to 10th August 2017 due
to pending decision of Railway Board and
earnings on length of about 14.45 Km section
from Krishnapatnam Railway station to the
Buffer of port. Efforts are required to finalize
the same at the earliest.

Railway Board has not yet taken any
decision towards the payment of
Terminal Cost for the period from 15"
November 2008 to 10™ August 2017.
Thus, the Company has not recorded in
the books of account.

MoR has agreed vide their letter no.
2012/Infra/18/5 dated: 15/11/2017 to pay
apportioned earnings for 14.45 Km line
inside Port w.e.f. 15/11/2017.

3(a)

The contractor (RVNL) is charging Directional
& General Charges (D&G Charges) from the
company on the various categories of work
executed by it. However, no interest has been
charged by the RVNL on D&G charges for the
current and previous years” works executed and
the same has also not been provided for by the
company in its books of accounts.

Interest Charged by Rail Vikas Nigam
limited is as per the Construction
Agreement and Agreement does not
provide any provision of charging the
interest on D & G charges.

3(b)

Without qualifying our opinion, attention is
drawn towards Note No. 5.4, Clause 10.2 of the
Construction  Agreement provides “D&G
charges shall be payable to RVNL @ 9.13% for
civil work, 10.18% for electrical works and
10.69% for S&T work. However, the above
percentage shall be calculated finally based on
the actual completion cost.”

Thus D&G charges being capitalized and
amortization/depreciation being charged
thereon is subject to change based on the
outcome of final actual completion cost.

At Present RVNL is charging D & G
Charges in accordance with provisions of
Construction Agreement.

On completion of work, final D & G
Charge will be calculated and actual
impact will be taken in financial
Statements.

Without qualifying our opinion, attention is
drawn towards Note No. 21(ii) as such South
Central Railway has claimed Service Tax/GST
on the services related to operation and
maintenance and indirect cost.

Company has raised issue towards non-
applicability of Service Tax/GST on
Operation and Maintenance  cost,
BZA/Division has denied reversing
Service Tax / GST liability on O&M
cost. However, upon repeated requests in
JSC meeting, BZA Division agreed to
take legal opinion on this matter.
Incidentally, Railway Board (MoR) has
also taken up this issue with Revenue
Secretary, Gol of India.

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw
attention to Note No. 2I(iv) and as such
Operation Agreement is yet to be entered into

The Company had already taken over the
Maintenance of Phase-III line.

|1}
Maintenance of Ph-I line also has been

&
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with SCR pertaining to operation of Phase — III
which is functional since 2™ March’ 2014. Thus
accounting for of revenue and operation cost of
Phase — III between KRCL and SCR is being
made on the basis of Operation and
Maintenance Agreement for Phase — I. If the
terms of agreement change, the related revenue
and operation cost will vary.

As per Operation & Maintenance agreement of
Phase — I line, the agreement is to be reviewed
every six months but the same was reviewed
last in October” 2012.

taken over by the Company from 1%
January 2018. Existing O&M Agreement
1s under revision to this effect.

Operations of the Ph-I and Ph-III line will
be done as per Railway Operation Rules
of MoR.

Review of O & M Agreement is a
continuous process which takes place at
regular intervals in review meetings
between KRCL & SCR. All operational
disputes are discussed at these meetings.
Minutes of review meetings already
provided to the Auditor. However, review
does not necessarily mean change in O &
M Agreement.

Reference is drawn regarding charging by
contractor (RVNL) Directional & General
Charges (D&G Charges) from the company on
maintenance service on railway line being
provided by outside third party without any
contractual terms. RVNL has no role in this
work.

Company is not empowered in construction
agreement to pay D&G charge on Maintenance
work to any person. Company is paid the same
to RVNL. Now the company has made a
provision amounting to Rs. 6,17.971.00 for its
recovery under the head “Receivable from
RVNL",

KRCL has already issued letter to RVNL
for refund of D&G Charges on
Maintenance Bills.

In respect the above mentioned issue,
RVNL agreed to adjust the amount of Rs.
6,17.971/- which was inadvertently
levied by RVNL to KRCL vide their
letter no. 2008/RVNL/F&A/SPV/KPRCL
dated 01.08.2018.

Unauthoritatively RVNL has levied D&G
Charges amounting to Rs 7,42.114/-on
construction value of Rs. 81,28,299/- of 30
Bedded Crew Running Room. The order was
placed to KPCL for construction of crew
running room, KPCL made construction. The
documents produced before us in this respect do
not have any terms authorizing the payment of
D & G charges to anyone.

Letter has been written to RVNL for
recovery of excess D& G charged on
Crew Running Room bills vide letter no.
KRCL/maintenance/2017-18/02  Dated
29/06/2018.

In respect the Above mentioned letter,
RVNL agreed to adjust the amount of Rs.
7.42,114/- which was inadvertently
levied by RVNL to KRCL vide their
letter no. 2008/RVNL/F&A/SPV/KPRCL
dated 01.08.2018.
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Sl. No

Auditor’s Comments for Financial Year

2017-18

Management Reply

Report on Internal Financial Control:

No control over revenue apportionment by
South Central Railway (SCR) as revenue sheets
are sent by SCR to KRCL only on provisional
basis and, collateral records neither supplied by
SCR nor maintained by the company and as
such there is no basis to verify the same

Every month reconciliation is being done
with the Traffic Revenue Officer of SCR.
RR by RR reconciliation is done evry
month in order to arrive at correct
revenue of the company. Also systematic
records are maintained.

P A

No control over Operational & Maintenance
expenses, overhead charges, GST and other
expenses which are charged by SCR as there
are no basis to verify the same

The matter has been raised in the meeting
with South Central Railway and KRCL
officials and the same has been minuted
in meetings.

In respect of any kind of over-charging in
O&M Costs, Company is following up
with South Central Railway for the
refund of the same.

L2

No control over D & G Charges being levied by
the RVNL over maintenance expenses charged
by outside agency for maintenance of III phase
line and on Crew Running Room constructed
by KPCL.

While checking the bills received from
RVNL, incorrect D&G charges were
observed. The issue was flagged to
RVNL which has since been rectified by
RVNL.

As informed to us, management is not having
any methodology to identify, ensure and
provide for the bills pertaining to current and
previous years in respect of the railway line
construction project not received from the

Appropriate recording system is in place
in KRCL. Total estimated cost of project
is approx. 2064 Crore out of which
1815.81 Crore has already been incurred
upto 31" March 2018 as per Bills
received from RVNL.

contractor so far.
ék,:.’&( .
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Form No. MGT-11
Proxy form

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN : U45200TG2006PLC051378
Name of the company : Krishnapatnam Railway Company Limited
Registered office : Amsri Faust Complex,
Door No 9-1-164 /A to 166,
5tk Floor, Sarojini Devi Road
Secunderabad- 500003 Telangana

Name of the member (s)

Registered address

E-mail Id
Folio No/ Client Id
DP ID

I/We, being the member (s) of ............ shares of the above named
company, hereby appoint

1. Wahe ! conasmaiimmmseses

Address:

E-mail Id:
Signature:................ » or failing him as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on
a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the .............. Annual general
meeting/ Extraordinary general meeting of the company, to be held on the
...... day of....... At.......... am. / p.m. at..................(place) and at any

adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Resolution No.

Signature of shareholder

Signature of Proxy holder(s)
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.................................

.................................

.................................

................................

Affix
Revenue

Stamp




—

—

C&AG REPORT




_______________h»____________________________
_H_______________WH_________________________ﬁ
__:________________:L______________________
____q_______-_________Wm_*_j________________
_____:____________________:__Hﬁ____________
_____:_:______________________H:_:::;:
NOILVLS AVMIIVY >
avavy3aNnnoas
— J T
ﬁ JM ' ™ e
[77]
m x
] w v
u_ o
m. £ g
g =
| Z
(dOHS S._w_n ?
! 3ONVI13Y 3
1Snv4 % —
301440 INAY I4SIY e
mwn.,mm \/' YEISVE HIMOL %0010 u'a’s
S:M3PI44( b avo
NVIvHORVS IR 0] | =
\ avowuas .
M (" FORIB 30 0
NVIDC
SavoN X, thozﬁr\ LINVENYLSEY _
NIQNYD
L e L N g L
-_ (v O ¥ 13dAWN©38) avoH d's—-
N g
301440 31DINOYHHO NY223Q :ddO
(dOHS TvLIDIa 3ONYI13Y 3A08Y)
, ‘avavydaaNnnoas
‘AVOY IA3A INIFONYS
‘994-1-6 O} V/¥9L-1-6 'ON'HOOd IS
| /T 'X31dNOD 1SNV IMSWY
\ IRLOORABOM T 301440 108 OL dVW 3LN0Y




